
Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 

 
AGENDA 
 
A.    MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 
B. ROLL CALL 
C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
D. PROCLAMATIONS (Acknowledgement) 
 none 
E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. November 27, 2023, Study Session Minutes – Comprehensive Plan Briefing No. 1 
2. November 27, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

 
F. APPOINTMENTS to BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

1. Meg Zelenovich is nominated for re-appointment to the Arts and Letters Commission by Councilmember 
Smotherson. 

2. Aisha Hedges is nominated for re-appointment to the Arts and Letters Commission by Councilmember 
Smotherson. 

3. Marcie Dear is nominated for re-appointment to the Arts and Letters Commission by Councilmember 
Smotherson. 

4. John Tieman is nominated for re-appointment to the Arts and Letters Commission by Councilmember 
Smotherson. 

 
G. SWEARING IN TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

none  
 

H. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (Total of 15 minutes allowed) 
Request to Address the Council Forms are located on the ledge just inside the entrance.   
Please complete and place the form in the basket at the front of the room. 

 
The public may also submit written comments must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. the day of the meeting.  Comments may be  sent via email to:  
councilcomments@ucitymo.org, or mailed to the City Hall – 6801 Delmar Blvd. – Attention City Clerk.  Such comments will be provided to City Council prior 
to the meeting.  Comments will be made a part of the official record and made accessible to the public online following the meeting. Please note, when 
submitting your comments, a name and address must be provided.  Please also not if your comment is on an agenda or non-agenda item. If a name and 
address are not provided, the provided comment will not be recorded in the official record. 
 
I. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
J. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

none 
K. CONSENT AGENDA (1 voice vote required) 

1.  Relocation Assistances – Nobu’s Restaurant (6253 Delmar Blvd.) 
2.  Purchase Replacement Drones  
3.  Purchase Replacement Portable Radios 
4.  Municipal Park Grant Round 24 – Millar Park Baseball Field 
5.  Police Department purchase of camera surveillance equipment to be used in Heman Park and Millar Park 
 

 
L. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT –  (voice vote on each item as needed) 

none 
  

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 

CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 
6801 Delmar Blvd., University City, Missouri 63130 

Monday, November 27, 2023 
6:30 p.m. 

mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org


Page 2 of 2 
 

 
M. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  (2nd and 3rd readings – roll call vote required) 

none 
 
N. NEW BUSINESS 
Resolutions   (voice vote required) 

Resolutions  
none 

Bills   (Introduction and 1st reading - no vote required) 
none 

 
O. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 

1. Boards and Commission appointments needed 
2. Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 
3. Boards, Commissions and Task Force minutes 
4. Other Discussions/Business 

 
P. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (continued if needed) 

Q. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

R. EXECUTIVE SESSION (roll call vote required) 
Motion to go into a Closed Session according to Missouri Revised Statutes 610.021 (1) Legal actions, causes 
of action or litigation involving a public governmental body and any confidential or privileged communications 
between a public governmental body or its representatives or attorneys. 

 
S. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The public may also observe via: 
Live Stream via YouTube: 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCyN1EJ_-Q22918E9EZimWoQ 
 
Posted November 22, 2023 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCyN1EJ_-Q22918E9EZimWoQ


2023-11-13 Study Session Page 1 of 6 

STUDY SESSION 
Comprehensive Plan Update 

Session Number One 
CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 

6801 Delmar Blvd., University City, Missouri 63130 
Monday, November 13, 2023 

5:00 p.m. 

AGENDA 

1. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER
At the Study Session of the City Council of University City held on Monday, November 13, 2023, Mayor
Terry Crow, called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.

In addition to the Mayor, the following members of Council were present:
Councilmember Stacy Clay; (excused) 
Councilmember Aleta Klein 
Councilmember Steven McMahon 
Councilmember Jeffrey Hales 
Councilmember Dennis Fuller 
Councilmember Bwayne Smotherson 

Also in attendance were City Manager, Gregory Rose; City Attorney, John F. Mulligan, Jr., Director of 
Planning and Development, John Wagner, Senior Planner, Mary Kennedy, Peggy Holly, and Ellen Hartz 
of the Planning Commission. 

2. CHANGES TO REGULAR AGENDA
None

3. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE
Mr. Rose stated the Planning Commission adopted the City's Comprehensive Plan on October 6th.  And
tonight, he has asked Dr. Wagner to brief Council on this Plan for the purpose of providing guidance and
insight.

Process Highlights - Dr. Wagner 
The Plan builds on existing work and broad community involvement. 

• Strong Plan Commission leadership
• Department leadership input
• Synthesized previous work & incorporated plans; (2040 Vision, Economic Development Strategy)
• Multifaceted public engagement
• Support and constructive feedback from Boards & Commissions

Unique Plan for University City 
• Articulates specific actions the City should take to realize the community’s vision
• Responds to challenges and opportunities
• Incorporates contemporary best practices in planning & land development

Action Items Have Broad Support From the Community - Chapter 3 
• Presented to City Council in July
• Addressing the history of segregation
• Planning for land uses in flood-prone areas
• Proactively addresses vacancy and property maintenance

E - 1 - 1



2023-11-13 Study Session Page 2 of 6 

• Strengthening Olive Blvd.
• Promoting walkability and safety, and many more things

Plan Commission actively engaged other Boards & Commissions and Community Leaders 
• Incorporated direct feedback
• Endorsements to-date:
 Park Commission
 Commission on Senior Issues
 Library Board
 Green Practices Commission
 Urban Forestry Commission
 Commission on Stormwater Issues

Future Character and Land Use Sets the Foundation for Future Code Changes 
• Character-based approach; (Chapter 4)
• Draws on plans and research since the last plan was adopted in 1999 and updated in 2005
• Provides guidance on potential future zoning & other code changes (traffic, building, etc.)

First two stages: Community sets vision; Works with experts to form the plan 

Approximately 600 surveys results were received. 

Discussion of Plan Content and Implementation - Ms. Kennedy 
Managing Implementation   

• All of the policies and programs outlined in the plan will require Council input and action
• Monitor regularly for performance and relevancy
• Collaborate on implementation with individuals and organizations in private, public, and civic sectors
• Updates should be considered at least every 5 years but can be sooner

Integrating Into City Operations & Processes 
• Regulatory updates; zoning, traffic, property maintenance codes, and floodplain management
• Development approvals
• Capital improvement budgeting
• Annual strategic planning
• Private development decisions
• Economic incentives
• Future partnerships

E - 1 - 2



 

 2023-11-13 Study Session Page 3 of 6 
 

Implementation Matrix identifies lead coordinators and timelines 
• Most actions require further Council input/action during implementation (i.e., code updates) 
• Metrics will be developed when implementation begins 
• Lead coordinators will identify funding sources 

 
Specific Actions Assigned to City Council 

(Timeframe = Short term (S); Medium (M); Long term (L); Ongoing (O)) 
 

 

 
 
Mr. Rose asked Dr. Wagner how he would like to proceed with any questions or comments from Council?  
Dr. Wagner stated they can be addressed at this meeting or submitted by November 20th.    
 
 
Next Steps - Dr. Wagner 
 

• NOVEMBER 20, 2023 – Submit requested changes to staff 

• NOVEMBER 27, 2023 – (Study Session); discuss and consider requested changes 

• DECEMBER 6, 2023 – Plan Commission discusses and considers requested changes by Council 
and votes to recommend an amended plan 

• DECEMBER 11, 2023 – City Council vote on plan approval 

 

E - 1 - 3



 

 2023-11-13 Study Session Page 4 of 6 
 

• DECEMBER 2023 – Share plan document broadly by posting on websites, sending emails with 
links, printing hard copies 

• JANUARY 2024 – Move forward with implementation, develop metrics to monitor performance 

 
Chairperson Holly stated it has been no small task to wade through the 157 pages of this plan and make 
decisions on the things this community cares about.  So, she would like to thank Council, the Plan 
Commission, the community, and the City's boards and commissions, for all of their hard work.   
 She stated as a part of the planning process the Commission engaged a broader section of the 
community to be a standard part of the process. 
 Citizens showed up at workshops, completed surveys, and provided vital feedback and 
directions.  
 Many of the City's boards and commissions provided written comments and endorsements; 
Urban Forestry, Green Practices, Senior Commission, Parks, Historic Preservation and the Library Board.  
And the Former Mayor, Shelley Welsch, sent the Commission a letter endorsing their plan. 
 Chairperson Holly stated the Plan Commission spent a year before any work began on a 
visioning process.  Because the goal was to ensure that this was not just about zoning, but a 
comprehensive plan that addressed every aspect of the City.  It recognizes where we are today, as well 
as the changes that have occurred since 2005.  A list of the references utilized during the development of 
this process will be provided to Council.  So, a tremendous amount of accolades and recognition goes out 
to her colleagues who spent two years of their time working on this plan. 
 Finally, special thanks go out to the City staff, Mary Kennedy and John Wagner for their 
remarkable work in assisting the Commission with addressing all of the issues that were identified. 
 Chairperson Holly stated the theme of the Comprehensive Plan is universal; everyone loves 
living in U City, but believes there is a need to deal with two specific concerns:  
• The City's history of racial segregation and what that has meant in terms of opportunities, and 

Issues associated with flooding  
 
Discussion 

• Are there topics in the plan you’d like additional material on?  
• What is important for successful implementation? 
• Are council priorities aligned with the implementation timelines? 
• What key topic(s) were you expecting the plan to address?  Did you find it? 

 
Councilmember McMahon stated Council leans on the Plan Commission a lot and is eternally grateful for 
all of the work they have performed.  He stated he is torn between the overarching goals; which he has no 
qualms with, and the details.   Because what he is trying to wrap his head around is the process that will 
be utilized to implement each aspect of this plan, so you can see exactly what direction it's going in.  
Councilmember McMahon stated an example of what he perceives to be two dueling ideas is the 
development of walkable areas and different types of housing.  Since the City has not been successful in 
establishing an In-Fill Review Board, how would you balance these two goals while also making sure that 
the character of a neighborhood remains intact?  Which one comes first?  Dr. Wagner stated although 
everything is not qualitative, the metrics will have to come first.  So he believes that things will kind of 
happen simultaneously.   
 Councilmember McMahon stated the influx of developers within this community seems to be 
ongoing, so how will we ensure that they are adhering to this plan?  Dr. Wagner stated staff will have to 
provide them with the standards for developing that project.  Councilmember McMahon stated he likes the 
objectives of the Plan, but believes there needs to be adequate mechanisms in place to make sure it does 
not get put on a shelf.  Dr. Wagner stated while there is no doubt that from time to time it will be necessary 
to make amendments, he believes the metrics will be that mechanism because they have been designed 
to ascertain the direction of the plan and sustain progress five years down the road.  
 
Councilmember Fuller thanked the Commission for sitting down with each member of Council, individually, 
to garner their input.   

E - 1 - 4



 

 2023-11-13 Study Session Page 5 of 6 
 

He stated the concerns expressed by Councilmember McMahon also went through his mind; especially 
since the last update of this plan was almost 20 years ago.  Therefore, before putting this plan into action 
he would like to make the following suggestions: 
• That a comprehensive review of each section, along with a plan for implementation, be 

conducted on an annual basis; 
• That a representative from all of the pertinent boards and commissions be included in this annual 

review or be required to conduct a separate review with the Plan Commission on an annual basis,  
• That an all-inclusive review be conducted every three or five years 

 
Councilmember Fuller thanked everyone for their hard work and for meeting with each of Councilmember 
separately in this process.  He stated that he believes that a review process of this nature would be 
beneficial to make sure that all of the hard work conducted by this Commission will not be in vain.  
 
Councilmember Hales asked Mr. Rose about his experience with the execution of comprehensive plans?  
Mr. Rose stated the most important factor is having a clear understanding of what is included in the plan.  
For instance, this plan references some things like the Stormwater Master Plan that at this point, has not 
been created.  He also believes there has to be an appreciation for the fiscal impacts related to 
infrastructure and regulatory guidance like a change in the City's land use.  Mr. Rose stated typically, each 
section of the plan is reviewed to identify those areas believed to contain the most significant components; 
i.e., those having the greatest financial impact.  And in this case, he thinks staff has allotted enough time 
for that review to be undertaken.    
 
Mayor Crow wished Ms. McQueen a happy birthday.  He stated recently, the two largest landowners 
within The Loop transferred their properties to new owners.  So, after reviewing the list of commissions 
that participated in this plan, he was curious to know whether the Plan Commission and/or staff has had 
any conversations or outreach with the LSBD, or any of the land/business owners in The Loop?  
Chairperson Holly stated the Commission has spent time talking about this plan with the LSBD on multiple 
occasions.  And very early on, they assigned one of their members to be a part of the Advisory 
Committee.  So, they have been tied to this effort since day one. 
 
Councilmember Klein thanked the Commission for developing such an amazing plan.  She then asked 
whether the inclusion of private developers and businesses in the plan's goals was related to an invitation 
for them to participate and strike a balance that would encourage future investments, or if it was simply 
more about compliance?  Dr. Wagner stated while invitation is a good word, it's actually a little bit of both.  
Compliance will be key for reworking the Zoning Ordinances, but there is also a need for them to be 
somewhat inviting because if zoning becomes an impediment, developers may not view building here as a 
worthwhile opportunity.  
 
Mayor Crow stated the trench warfare conducted over and over again by this Commission provides 
Council with a level of comfort that is immensely appreciated.  Because as you've probably sensed by 
now, there does not appear to be a great deal of variance between the goals established by all parties.  
So, to everyone on the Planning Commission, Advisory Board, and staff, we can't thank you enough for 
the exceptional work product you've put together. 
 Mayor Crow then asked if there were any specific areas staff and/or the Commission would like 
Council to spend time on at the next Study Session? 
 
Dr. Wagner stated if Mr. Rose agrees, he would like to focus on the fiscal impacts of the plan and any 
additions submitted by Council between now and then.  
 
Mr. Rose stated he certainly thinks the fiscal and staffing impacts of the plan are two areas being 
proposed that he would like to make sure Council is fully aware of.  
 
Commissioner Hartz stated in response to Councilmember McMahon's comments about the opportunity 
for developers to get ahead of the plan, that's simply not going to happen.   

E - 1 - 5



 

 2023-11-13 Study Session Page 6 of 6 
 

Because based on the City's chain of command, all developers must first come before the Planning 
Commission; which is pretty tough.  And if they pass that hurdle, the plan is then submitted to Council for 
approval.  So she does not think this should be a major concern.   
 

4. ADJOURNMENT 
Mayor Crow encouraged his colleagues to submit their questions or comments to staff by November 
20th.  He then thanked everyone for their participation and adjourned the Study Session at 5:39 p.m. 
 
LaRette Reese, 
City Clerk, MRCC 

E - 1 - 6



E - 1 - 7



E - 1 - 8



 

Page 1 of 7 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
AGENDA 
 

A.  MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 
At the Regular Session of the City Council of University City held on Monday, November 13, 
2023, Mayor Terry Crow called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 
 

B. ROLL CALL 
In addition to the Mayor, the following members of Council were present:  
   Councilmember Stacy Clay; (excused) 
   Councilmember Aleta Klein 
   Councilmember Steven McMahon 
   Councilmember Jeffrey Hales 
 `  Councilmember Dennis Fuller 
   Councilmember Bwayne Smotherson 
    
Also in attendance were City Manager, Gregory Rose, City Attorney, John F. Mulligan, Jr., and 
Finance Director, Keith Cole. 

 
C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Hearing no motions to amend, Councilmember Hales moved to approve the Agenda as 
presented, it was seconded by Councilmember McMahon, and the motion carried unanimously. 
 

D. PROCLAMATIONS - (Acknowledgement) 
None 
 

E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
1. October 23, 2023, Meeting Minutes were moved by Councilmember Klein, it was seconded 

by Councilmember McMahon, and the motion carried unanimously. 
 

F. APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
1. Charles Gascon is nominated for reappointment to the Plan Commission by Councilmember 

Jeff Hales, it was seconded by Councilmember Smotherson, and the motion carried 
unanimously. 

2. Al Fleischer is nominated for reappointment to the Plan Commission by Councilmember Jeff 
Hales, it was seconded by Councilmember McMahon, and the motion carried unanimously. 

3. Larry Williams is nominated for appointment as a fill-in to the Arts and Letters Commission 
by Mayor Terry Crow, it was seconded by Councilmember Smotherson, and the motion 
carried unanimously. 

4. Maximilian Sassouni is nominated for appointment as a fill-in to the LSBD by Mayor Terry 
Crow, it was seconded by Councilmember Hales, and the motion carried unanimously. 

5. Bobette Patton is nominated for reappointment to the EDRST Board by Mayor Terry Crow, it 
was seconded by Councilmember Smotherson, and the motion carried unanimously. 

6. Cynthia Martin is nominated for reappointment to the EDRST Board by Mayor Terry Crow, it 
was seconded by Councilmember Fuller, and the motion carried unanimously. 

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 

CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 
6801 Delmar Blvd., University City, Missouri 

63130 
Monday, November 13, 2023 

6:30 p.m. 

E - 2 - 1



 

Page 2 of 7 
 

 
G. SWEARING IN TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

1. Charlene Temple was sworn into the Arts and Letters Commission on November 9, 2023, in 
the Clerk’s office. 

2. Nicole Baumgarten was sworn into the Green Practices Commission on November 6, 2023, 
in the Clerk’s office. 

 
H. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (Total of 15 minutes allowed) 

Procedures for submitting comments for Citizen Participation and Public Hearings:  
Request to Address the Council Forms are located on the ledge just inside the entrance.  
Please complete and place the form in the basket at the front of the room. 
 
Written comments must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting.  Comments 
may be sent via email to:  councilcomments@ucitymo.org, or mailed to the City Hall – 6801 Delmar Blvd. 
– Attention City Clerk.  Such comments will be provided to City Council prior to the meeting.  Comments 
will be made a part of the official record and made accessible to the public online following the meeting.  
 
Please note that when submitting your comments, a name and address must be provided.  Please also 
note whether your comment is on an agenda or a non-agenda item.  If a name and address are not 
provided, the comment will not be recorded in the official record. 
 
William Boyd, 1461 Forest Green Court, U City, MO 
Mr. Boyd stated he submitted a prepared statement to Council with the hope that the persistent 
problems associated with his neighbor parking campers and trailers in his driveway could finally 
be resolved to everyone's satisfaction.   
 
Mayor Crow thanked Mr. Boyd for his appearance tonight and for taking the time to write such a 
detailed statement.  He noted that the City Manager and his staff will be working to assist him in 
resolving this issue. 
 

I. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
Councilmember Smotherson stated he would like to emphasize that this problem has been 
ongoing since September 14, 2017, when he first reported it to staff.  Thereafter, he reported it 
on December 8, 2020, March 7, 2022, September 29, 2022, and July 14, 2023.  So, he is well 
aware of the difficulties this has created for the residents of Forest Green Court and is glad to 
know that it is finally being addressed.  Councilmember Smotherson stated he would also like to 
inform Mr. Boyd that another topic related to this issue will be addressed at Council's November 
27th meeting.   
 

J. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
None 
 

K. CONSENT AGENDA - (1 voice vote required) 
1. Contract Approval for Right-of-Way Acquisition Consulting Services (Temporary and 

Permanent Construction Easements) Canton Phase II-STP-5402(619) 
2. EDRST Funding – FY24 Farmers Market and U City in Bloom 
3. Façade Improvement Policy Changes 
4. Events Policy Change 

 
Councilmember McMahon moved to approve Items 1 through 4 of the Consent Agenda, it was 
seconded by Councilmember Klein and the motion carried unanimously. 

E - 2 - 2

mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org


 

Page 3 of 7 
 

 
L. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT- (Voice vote on each item as needed) 

1. First (1st) Quarter Financial Report - September 30, 2023 
Mr. Rose stated Council is being asked to receive the First Quarter Financial Report from 
Finance Director, Keith Cole. 
 

Mr. Cole stated his presentation will consist of an overview of the major funds as of September 30, 
2023, for the First Quarter of Fiscal Year 2024. 
 
General Fund - Revenues 

• Adjusted Budget     $25,655,485 
• YTD Actual      $2,926,700 
• Actual as % of Adjusted Budget   11.4% 
• Increase/(Decrease) compared to 

same quarter of FY2023    $(56,049) 
 
Key Points: 
 Increase in Sales & Use Tax Revenue of roughly $93,600, or 13.4%. This increase is 

largely due to an increase in Local Use, St. Louis County, and Fire Sales taxes. 
 Increase in Gross Receipts Tax of roughly $45,700, or 4.5%. This increase is due to when 

revenue from the Water Tax is received; Previous 1st Qtr payment received for 1 month; 
Current 1st Qtr payment received for 2 months. 

 Increase in service charges of roughly $190,700, or 150.58%. This increase is mainly the 
result of collecting $190,000 from Ambulance Services. 

 Increase in Interest Revenue of roughly $32,800, or 931.08%. Increase due to favorable 
market conditions in the 1st Quarter. 

 Increase in Other Revenue of roughly $26,000, or 190.7%. This increase is due to the 
receipt of funds from the Opioid Settlement and Credit Card Fees. 

 Decrease in Grants of roughly $360,000, or (100.0%). Decrease due to the closure of the 
Safer Grant in FY23. 

 Decrease in Inspection Fees and permits of roughly $80,200, or (27.1%); decrease in 
Building and Zoning Permits  
 

 Note: The bulk of the City's revenue from property taxes will be received during 
December 2023 and January 2024. 

 
Overall, revenue as a percent of the budget shows a slight increase of 0.9% when compared to the 
same quarter of FY23. 
 
General Fund - Expenditures 

• Adjusted Budget     $29,023,129 
• YTD Actual      $6,877,990 
• Actual as % of Adjusted Budget   23.7% 
• Increase/(Decrease) compared to 

same quarter of FY2023    $(500,093) 
 
Key Points: 
 Decrease in Public Works and Parks & Recreation Capital Outlay expenditures of roughly 

$1,249,070. Mainly due to the emergency purchase of vehicles and equipment related to 
the flood that occurred in the 1st Quarter of FY2023. 

 Increase in Parks & Recreation expenditures of roughly $453,000, or 72.9% compared to 
the same quarter of FY23. Mainly due to the contract with Midwest Pool Mgmt, electricity for 
Aquatics, part-time salaries, and electricity for Centennial Commons. 

 

E - 2 - 3



 

Page 4 of 7 
 

Overall, expenditures as a percent of the budget increased by 1.0% when compared to the same 
quarter of FY2023. 
 
Capital Improvement Sales Tax - Revenues 

• Adjusted Budget     $2,801,200 
• YTD Actual      $257,628 

 
• Actual as % of Adjusted Budget   9.2% 
• Increase/(Decrease) compared to 

same quarter of FY2023    $11,038 
 
Key Points: 
 Sales Tax revenue increased roughly 4.5% during the 1st Quarter of 

FY2024, compared to the same quarter of FY23. 
 
 Note: revenue is generated from pooled sales tax from other cities in the county and 

is based on per capita. 
 

Capital Improvement Sales Tax - Expenditures 
• Adjusted Budget     $1,790,337 
• YTD Actual      $151,688 
• Actual as % of Adjusted Budget   8.5% 
• Increase/(Decrease) compared to 

same quarter of FY2023    $89,444 
 
Key Points: 
 Increase in expenditures related to the allocation of revenue for four (4) positions in Public 

Works during the First Quarter of FY23, and payments for capital outlay.  
 
Park and Stormwater Sales Tax - Revenues 

• Adjusted Budget     $2,001,000 
• YTD Actual      $153,033 
• Actual as % of Adjusted Budget   7.6% 
• Increase/(Decrease) compared to 

same quarter of FY2023    $26,492 
 
Key Points: 
 Sales Tax revenue for the first quarter of FY2024 shows an increase of roughly 20.9% when 

compared to the same quarter of FY2023. 
 Of the $153,033 in sales tax revenue, roughly $65,400, or 42.7%, was generated from the 

TIF. 
 

 Note: sales tax revenue is based on point-of-sale 
 
Park and Stormwater Sales Tax - Expenditures 

• Adjusted Budget     $1,561,240 
• YTD Actual      $109,811 
• Actual as % of Adjusted Budget   7.0% 
• Increase/(Decrease) compared to 

same quarter of FY2023    $64,964 
 
Key Points: 
 Increase in expenditures mainly due to the allocation of three (3) positions in Public Works 

during the First Quarter of FY23, and the removal of trees by outside contractors.  

E - 2 - 4



 

Page 5 of 7 
 

 
Public Safety Sales Tax - Revenues 

• Adjusted Budget     $2,291,000 
• YTD Actual      $212,434 
• Actual as % of Adjusted Budget   9.3% 
• Increase/(Decrease) compared to 

same quarter of FY2023    $8,207 
 
Key Points: 
 There was a slight increase of roughly 4.0%; revenues appear to be within reason when 

compared to 1st quarter of FY2023. 
 

Public Safety Sales Tax - Expenditures 
• Adjusted Budget     $575,951 
• YTD Actual      $164,097 
• Actual as % of Adjusted Budget   28.5% 
• Increase/(Decrease) compared to 

same quarter of FY2023    $5,579 
 
Key Points: 
 There was a slight increase of roughly 3.5%; expenditures appear to be within reason when 

compared to 1st quarter of FY2023. 
 

Councilmember Smotherson asked if he could get a detailed explanation of the expenditures 
associated with the Park and Stormwater Sales Tax?  Mr. Cole stated he would have to do a deep 
dive into the fund to provide a detailed explanation of the expenditures. 
 
Mr. Rose stated it is required that the Park and Stormwater Sales Tax be used solely on parks, 
stormwater, or both.   
 
Mayor Crow asked if the $65,400 generated from the TIF was above or below the City's projection?  
Mr. Cole stated that he did not have the projection available at this time, but the $65,400 only 
represents what has been received for this quarter. 
 
Mr. Rose stated he is working with Mr. Cole and the City Attorney to prepare a report highlighting 
revenue received from the TIF so that the exact amount will be clear to everyone. 
 

M. UNFINISHED BUSINESS - (Roll call vote required on 2nd and 3rdreadings) 
1. BILL 9525 – AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 130.580 OF THE MUNICIPAL 

CODE OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, RELATING TO NON-
UNIFORMED EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM BENEFIT ADJUSTMENTS, BY 
INCREASING MONTHLY BENEFITS TO RETIREES AND THEIR BENEFICIARIES 
OTHER THAN CHILDREN BY TWO PERCENT.  Bill Number 9525 was read for the 
second and third time. 

 
Councilmember Klein moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember McMahon. 
 
Roll Call Vote Was: 
Ayes:  Councilmember McMahon, Councilmember Hales, Councilmember Fuller, 
Councilmember Smotherson, Councilmember Klein, and Mayor Crow. 
Nays:  None. 

E - 2 - 5



 

Page 6 of 7 
 

 
2. BILL 9526 - AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 130.590 AND 130.600 OF THE 

MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, RELATING TO 
NON-UNIFORMED EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM BENEFITS ON 
TERMINATION OTHER THAN RETIREMENT OR DEATH, AND VESTING OF 
BENEFITS, RESPECTIVELY, BY DECREASING THE NUMBER OF YEARS OF 
SERVICE FOR VESTING OF BENEFITS FROM TEN YEARS TO FIVE YEARS.  Bill 
Number 9526 was read for the second and third time. 

 
Councilmember Fuller moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember Hales. 
 
Roll Call Vote Was: 
Ayes:  Councilmember Hales, Councilmember Fuller, Councilmember Smotherson, 
Councilmember Klein, Councilmember McMahon, and Mayor Crow. 
Nays:  None. 
 

3. BILL 9531–AN ORDINANCE FIXING THE COMPENSATION TO BE PAID TO CITY 
OFFICIALS AND EMPLOYEES AS ENUMERATED HEREIN FROM AND AFTER 
NOVEMBER 13, 2023, AND REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 7337.  Bill Number 9531 
was read for the second and third time. 

 
Councilmember Hales moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember McMahon. 
 
Roll Call Vote Was: 
Ayes:  Councilmember Fuller, Councilmember Smotherson, Councilmember Klein, 
Councilmember McMahon, Councilmember Hales, and Mayor Crow. 
Nays:  None. 
 

N. NEW BUSINESS 
 Resolutions - (Voice vote required) 
 Resolutions 
 None 
 
 Bills - (No vote required on introduction and 1st reading) 
 None 
 

O. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 
1.  Boards and Commission appointments needed 
2.  Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 

Councilmember Smotherson announced that the reception for the Returning Artist Series 
will be held at the high school library this Friday at 7 p.m. 

3.  Boards, Commissions, and Task Force minutes 
4.  Other Discussions/Business 

 
P. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (continued if needed) 

Q. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
Councilmember Fuller thanked the Parks Division for hosting the 100 Years of Parks celebration.  
Complements go out to everyone who participated in the rededication of the Veteran's Memorial 
Monument for a job well done. 
 
Mayor Crow stated he would also like to commend the Parks Commission for hosting this 
celebration, along with a special thanks to all of the City's veterans.  Coverage of the 
rededication can be found on Channel 5. 

E - 2 - 6



 

Page 7 of 7 
 

 The Police Department will be a drop-off point for Toys 4 Tots.  Donations can be made 
through December the 15th   
 

R. EXECUTIVE SESSION - (Roll call vote required) 
Motion to go into a Closed Session according to Missouri Revised Statutes 610.021 (1) Legal 
actions, causes of action, or litigation involving a public governmental body and any confidential 
or privileged communications between a public governmental body or its representatives or 
attorneys. 
 

Councilmember Smotherson moved to close the Regular Session and go into a Closed Session, it 
was seconded by Councilmember Hales. 
 
Roll Call Vote Was: 
Ayes:  Councilmember Smotherson, Councilmember Klein, Councilmember McMahon, 
Councilmember Hales, Councilmember Fuller, and Mayor Crow. 
Nays:  None. 
 

S. ADJOURNMENT 
Mayor Crow thanked everyone for their participation and closed the Regular Session at 6:59 p.m. 
to go into a Closed Session on the second floor.  The Closed Session reconvened in an open 
session at 7:16 p.m. 

 
 
LaRette Reese 
City Clerk, MRCC 

E - 2 - 7



E - 2 - 8



E - 2 - 9



E - 2 - 10



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

REQUESTED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CA20231127-01

Relocation Assistance - Nobu's

Brooke A. Smith Economic Development 
City Manager's Report Yes 

City Manager recommends approval. 

The fund reserves will be reduced by $28,283.27

$28,283.27 31.12.73.6807

Fund 31 - Fund Reserves RPA2 Fund 31 - Fund Reserves

As outlined in Ordinance 7108 and the Redevelopment Agreement for the Market at Olive 
project, the developer and City agreed to provide relocation assistance for those displaced 
by the development. 

Nobu's was previously located at 8627 Olive Blvd and was displaced by the Market at Olive 
Development.  Nobu's has leased a new location at 6241-6263 Delmar Blvd. City Council 
previously agreed to reimburse businesses required to relocate for 10% of build out costs, 
not to exceed $30,000.  Nobu's had provided receipts for build out costs totaling 
$282,892.71 making them eligible for a reimbursement of $28,283.27. 

1. Agreement
2. New Lease
3. Receipts and Calculation of Expenses
4. Final Lien Waiver

Economic Development 

City Manager, Gregrory Rose November 27, 2023

K - 1 -1



K - 1 -2



RELOCATION ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT 

This Relocation Assistance Agreement is entered into and made effective this ____ day 
of __________, 2023, by and between the City of University City, Missouri ("Grantor"), and 
Noboru Kidera, Taeko Kidera, George S. Kidera and Nobu’s Inc. doing business as Nobu 
Japanese Restaurant (collectively, "Grantees").  

RECITALS: 

A. Grantor approved a Redevelopment Agreement in connection with the Olive
Boulevard Commercial Corridor and Residential Conservation Redevelopment Plan and related 
RPA 1 Redevelopment Project, including a Relocation Policy. See Ordinance No. 7108 
(6/10/2019) and Redevelopment Agreement Section 3.2 and Exhibit I.  

B. The Relocation Policy provides assistance required under Missouri law to
occupants or businesses relocated in connection with the RPA 1 Redevelopment Project, and 
certain additional benefits to residents and businesses affected by the RPA 1 Redevelopment 
Project.  

C. Grantees are a displaced business within the meaning of said Relocation Policy
and occupied 8643 Olive Blvd. in RPA 1, on or before May 1, 2018. 

D. Grantees have relocated their restaurant business to 6253 Delmar Blvd. located
within University City limits, pursuant to an eight-year Sublease ending on or about June 23, 
2029, and they are eligible to be reimbursed by Grantor in the amount of $28,283.27, which is 
approximately 10% of their total build-out costs.    

E. Grantor is willing to make said reimbursement to Grantees.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, Grantor 
and Grantees agree as follows: 

1. Grantees are eligible to be reimbursed by Grantor in the amount of $28,283.27
which is approximately 10% of their total build-out costs to relocate their restaurant business in 
University City as stated in the above Recitals. 

2. Grantees shall provide all documents and information requested by Grantor to
satisfy Grantor that Grantees have used the funds in connection with the relocation of their 
restaurant business in RPA 3 as provided under the Relocation Policy. Grantor may pay the 
funds directly to Grantees. 

3. In the event that Grantees (i) sell or transfer their restaurant business at 6253
Delmar Blvd to another person or (ii) do not occupy the premises for their restaurant business, 
before June 30, 2026, Grantees shall immediately notify Grantor in writing and repay the grant 
amount to Grantor, provided that the repayment amount shall be reduced by 20% for each full 
year Grantees occupied the premises for their restaurant business. Grantees shall provide all 

K - 1 -3



documents and information requested by Grantor during the five-year period to satisfy Grantor 
that they occupied the premises for their restaurant business. If Grantees do not promptly provide 
such documents or information, they shall repay the full grant amount to Grantor. 

4. If Grantees fail to comply with this Relocation Assistance Agreement, Grantor
shall be entitled to repayment of the grant funds as provided herein and Grantee shall also pay 
any attorney's fees and costs incurred by Grantor to enforce it. Grantees shall be jointly and 
severally liable.  

GRANTOR GRANTEES 

By:___________________________  By:_________________________________ 
Gregory Rose   Noboru Kidera  
City Manager  Individually and as Owner-Operator 
City of University City, Missouri and President of Nobu’s Inc. 
6801 Delmar Blvd.
(314) 862-6767

By:_________________________________ 
Taeko Kidera 
Individually and as Owner-Operator 
and Secretary of Nobu’s Inc. 

By:_________________________________ 
George S. Kidera 
Individually and as Owner-Operator 
and Vice President of Nobu’s Inc. 

K - 1 -4



1 

SUBLEASE 
(The Lofts of Washington University) 

THIS SUBLEASE (this “Lease”) is made and entered into as of the 23rd day of June, 2021 
(the “Lease Date”), by and between QUADRANGLE MANAGEMENT COMPANY, a Missouri 
nonprofit corporation (“Landlord”) and NOBU, INC., a Missouri corporation d/b/a Nobu Japanese 
Restaurant (“Tenant”). 

WHEREAS, The Washington University (“WU”), as lessor, and Landlord, as lessee, have 
entered into a Master Lease, dated as of July 1, 2013 (the “Master Lease”), pursuant to which WU 
has master leased to Landlord the first floor commercial space (the “Commercial Space”) in the 
building known as and numbered 6241-6263 Delmar Boulevard, St. Louis, Missouri (the 
“Building”). 

WHEREAS, Landlord desires to sublease to Tenant, and Tenant desires to sublease from 
Landlord, a portion of the Commercial Space as more fully hereinafter identified, on and subject to 
the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth. 

In consideration of the mutual terms, conditions and covenants set forth in this Lease, the 
parties agree to be bound as follows: 

ARTICLE 1 

PREMISES 

1.1 Grant of Premises.  

(a) Landlord hereby leases to Tenant and Tenant hereby accepts from Landlord certain
premises within the Commercial Space consisting of approximately 964 square feet of space known 
as and numbered 6253 Delmar Boulevard and more particularly identified on the floor plan 
attached hereto and marked Exhibit A (the “Premises”), together with all leasehold improvements 
now or hereafter located thereon and rights to non-exclusive use of the common areas of the 
Commercial Space.   

(b) Landlord hereby grants Tenant the nonexclusive right to use a portion of the
sidewalk/patio space in front of the Premises as shown on Exhibit B (the “Sidewalk Space”).  
Tenant’s use of the Sidewalk space shall be subject to rights of the public and the terms and 
conditions of this Lease, shall be solely for the purpose of outdoor patron seating, and shall be 
subject to and conditioned upon Tenant, at its sole cost and expense, obtaining all required 
approvals by the Cities of St. Louis and University City, as applicable.  Reference is made to the 
Shared Access Area Agreement dated July 9, 2012, by and between WU and The City of 
University City, Missouri, recorded in Book 08082013 Page 0140 in the office of the Recorder of 
Deeds in and for the City of St. Louis, Missouri and in Book 20635 Page 1838 in the office of the 
Recorder of Deeds in and for the County of St. Louis, Missouri (the “Shared Access Area 
Agreement”).  Anything in this Lease to the contrary notwithstanding, use by Tenant and its 

K - 1 -5



 
 2 

patrons of the Sidewalk Space shall be subject to all terms and conditions of the Shared Access 
Area Agreement and the rights of the parties thereto.  Tenant is not a third party beneficiary of 
the rights of any party to the Shared Access Area Agreement. 
 
1.2   Limitation of Grant.  This Lease does not grant Tenant use of the exterior faces of 
any walls, the roof, the underside of the roof or the underside of the floor slabs (the “Reserved 
Areas”).  Landlord specifically reserves the right to install, maintain, use, repair and replace any 
pipes, duct work, conduits, utility lines and wires through hung ceiling space, column space, chases, 
partitions, in or beneath the floor slab or above or below the Premises or other parts of the Building 
containing the Premises which now or in the future may service the Premises or other parts of the 
Commercial Space.  Landlord further reserves the right to increase, reduce or change the number, 
size, height, layout or location of the Building or common areas of the Commercial Space as it 
deems proper; and to make alterations, renovations, improvements or additions to the Building 
and/or Commercial Space, including building additional buildings or adding additional stories to 
existing buildings. 
 
1.3  Landlord’s Work; Delivery.  Landlord at its expense and in accordance with 
Landlord’s building standards will complete Landlord’s Work more particularly described in 
Exhibit C attached hereto and incorporated herein.  In all other respects, Landlord shall deliver 
the Premises to Tenant on the Lease Date in “AS IS” condition. 
 
1.4  Tenant Finish Improvements.  Without limiting the provisions of Section 9.1 
below, all design and layout of all initial tenant finish improvements desired or proposed by 
Tenant shall be subject to Landlord’s approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.  
Tenant shall submit all proposed alteration plans and drawings regarding the construction of the 
initial tenant Improvements to Landlord for review within twenty-one (21) days following the 
Lease Date.  Landlord shall then have seven (7) days from its receipt to review the proposed 
alteration plans and notify Tenant in writing of any comments or required changes, or to 
otherwise give its approval or disapproval of such proposed alteration plans.  Tenant shall then 
have seven (7) days following its receipt of Landlord’s comments or objections to revise the 
proposed alteration plans and resubmit the same for Landlord’s final review and approval or 
comment.  Such process shall be repeated until final approval by Landlord of the proposed 
alteration plans has been obtained.  All design fees in connection the initial tenant improvements 
shall be the responsibility of Tenant.   
 
1.5  Tenant Improvement Allowance.  In exchange for the Tenant’s acceptance of the 
Premises in its current AS IS condition (other than for Landlord’s Work), Landlord agrees to 
reimburse Tenant with a one-time tenant improvement allowance in the amount of up to 
$30,000.00 to offset the costs of tenant improvements to be mutually approved by Landlord and 
Tenant to facilitate the improvement of the Premises and Tenant’s operation thereof, payable to 
Tenant upon the last to occur of (a) Tenant’s opening for business; (b) receipt by Landlord of 
receipts and final lien waivers for Tenant’s improvements, and (c) receipt by Landlord of 
Tenant’s first installment of Base Rent.  Up to $5,000.00 of the tenant improvement allowance 
may be utilized for Tenant’s exterior signage, subject to the requirements set forth in Section 1.6 
below. Tenant shall be solely responsible for the purchase and/or installation of its furniture, 

K - 1 -6



 
 3 

fixtures, and equipment. 
 
1.6  Signage, awnings, exterior features.  Landlord, at its sole cost and expense, will 
replace the monument sign depicted below, subject to approval of the City of University City 
and/or the City of St. Louis, or any agency or division thereof with oversight jurisdiction, 
including, without limitation, the Cultural Resources Commission of the City of St. Louis. 
 

  
 
Except as described above, any and all plans or proposals for signage, awnings or other exterior 
features desired by Tenant shall be subject to Landlord’s prior written approval, which shall not 
be unreasonably withheld, subject to the following:  (a) unless otherwise agreed by Landlord in 
its discretion, the cost thereof shall be solely for the account of Tenant; (b) Landlord reserves the 
right to require a uniform appearance for the entire Building; (c) any and all plans or proposals 
shall be coordinated in advance with any and all other parties who have signed a lease, letter of 
intent or other commitment to lease any other portion of the Commercial Space; (d) Tenant at its 
sole cost and expense shall obtain any and all permits or approvals that may be required by 
University City and/or the City of St. Louis or any agency or division thereof.  Tenant 
acknowledges that the Building is located in an historic district, and that for exterior features a 
permit or approval may be required from the Cultural Resources Commission of the City of St. 
Louis.   
 
1.7  Commissions.  Any and all lease commissions due Pace Properties LLC in 
connection with this Lease shall be paid by Landlord.  Any and all lease commissions due to 
Central Realty in connection with this Lease shall be paid by Pace Properties LLC through a 
separate agreement between Pace Properties LLC and Central Realty.  Except for the foregoing, 
each of Landlord and Tenant represents and warrants to the other that it has not dealt with any 
other broker, finder or other person in connection with the lease or occupancy of the Property in 
any manner that might give rise to any claim for commission against the other or any lien against 
the Building. 
 
1.8  Contingencies.  The obligations of the parties hereto shall be subject to 
satisfaction of each of the following contingencies on or before the relevant date noted: 
 

A. Landlord shall apply for all needed permits within thirty (30) days following the 

K - 1 -7



 
 4 

Lease Date and complete Landlord’s Work as soon as reasonably possible following its 
receipt of all needed permits and in any event within one hundred and twenty (120) days 
following the Lease Date. 
 
B. Tenant shall receive a Non-Residential Building Permit from the City of 
University City within thirty (30) days following the Lease Date. 

 
In the event any one or more of the above contingencies is not satisfied or mutually waived by the 
parties on or before the relevant date noted, this Lease shall terminate and neither party shall have 
any further obligation to the other hereunder. 
 
1.9  LEED Certification.  Tenant acknowledges that the Building is LEED platinum 
certified.  Tenant therefore agrees that all maintenance, repairs, or construction performed on the 
Building, including within the Premises, whether performed by or at the direction of Landlord or 
Tenant, and the ongoing operation of the Building, including the Premises, shall meet the 
requirements for LEED platinum certification from time to time mutually approved by Landlord 
and Tenant acting in good faith, such approval by either party not to be unreasonably withheld, 
delayed or conditioned; provided, that in the event Landlord and Tenant are at any time unable to 
agree upon the applicable requirements for LEED platinum certification as aforesaid, the applicable 
requirements for LEED platinum certification shall be as determined solely by Landlord acting in 
its good faith reasonable discretion. 
 

ARTICLE 2 
 

TERM 
 
2.1  Commencement Date; Initial Period.  The initial term of this Lease (the “Initial 
Period”) is for a period of eight (8) years, commencing on the Lease Date, which shall also be 
referred to herein as the “Commencement Date”. 
 
2.2  Rent Commencement Date.  As used herein, “Rent Commencement Date” shall 
mean the earlier of (a) one hundred twenty (120) days following Tenant’s receipt of the Building 
Permit, or (b) the date in which Tenant opens to the public for business. 
 
2.3  Option Period.  Tenant may extend the term of this Lease for one (1) additional 
period of five (5) years, commencing immediately upon the expiration of the Initial Period (“Option 
Period”).  The Initial Period together with the Option Period if exercised hereunder shall hereinafter 
be collectively referred to as the “Term.”  To exercise the option to extend the Term of this Lease 
for the Option Period, Tenant must notify Landlord in writing at least one hundred and eighty (180) 
days prior to expiration of the Initial Period.  In no event may Tenant exercise this option if an 
“Event of Default” has occurred hereunder which has not been cured or if any event has occurred 
which but for the giving of notice or the passage of time or both would constitute an “Event of 
Default.” 
 

 

K - 1 -8



 
 5 

ARTICLE 3 
 

RENT 
 
3.1  Payment of Rent.  Tenant shall make rental payments to Landlord, without demand, 
deductions or offset, in advance in equal monthly installments on the seventh day of each month 
during the term of this Lease as set forth below. All rental payments to be made by Tenant to 
Landlord shall be made payable to the order of “Quadrangle Management Company” at the 
following address: 
 
  Quadrangle Management Company 
  c/o Washington University in St. Louis 
  Campus Box 1016 
  700 Rosedale Avenue 
  St. Louis, Missouri  63112 
 
or to such other address that may be designated by Landlord by notice to Tenant.  
 
3.2  Base Rent.  The Base Rent described in Section 3.2 and the Additional Rent 
described in Section 3.3 are sometimes collectively referred to herein as the “Rent.” 
 
 (a) For the first five (5) years of the Initial Period, the annual base rent shall be at the 

rate of $19.00 per square foot in the amount of $18,316.00 per year payable in 
advance in monthly installments of $1,526.33 each, beginning on the Rent 
Commencement Date.  For further clarity, for the period from the Commencement 
Date to the Rent Commencement Date, there is no obligation to Base Rent.  

 
 (b) For the years six (6) to eight (8) of the Initial Period, the annual base rent shall be at 

the rate of $22.00 per square foot in the amount of $21,208.00 per year payable in 
advance in monthly installments of $1,767.33 each, beginning on the fifth (5th) 
anniversary of the Commencement Date.  

 
 (c) For the Option Period, if exercised, the annual base rent shall be at the rate of 

$23.10 per square foot in the amount of $22,268.40 per year payable in advance in 
monthly installments of $1,855.70 each, beginning on the eight (8) year anniversary 
of the Commencement Date.  

 
3.3  Additional Rent.  Tenant shall pay the following additional rent (“Additional Rent”) 
to Landlord as provided in Section 3.1 commencing on the Rent Commencement Date: 
 
 (a) Tenant's Commercial Space Pro Rata Share (as defined below) of current real 

property taxes or fees paid in lieu of taxes on the Commercial Space, as provided in 
Article 4. 

 
 (b) Tenant's Building Pro Rata Share of Landlord’s expenses for maintenance of the 

K - 1 -9



 
 6 

exterior of the Building, grounds, and interior areas common to all occupants of the 
Building. 

 
 (c) Tenant’s Building Pro Rata Share of Landlord’s expenses for any utilities serving 

the Building that are not separately metered to the Premises. 
 
 (d) Tenant’s Building Pro Rata Share of Landlord’s expenses for general liability 

insurance and building or fire and extended coverage insurance as provided in 
Article 6 below. 

 
 (e) Tenant’s Commercial Space Pro Rata Share of Landlord’s expenses for 

maintenance of the interior areas common to the Commercial Space only. 
 
  Prior to commencement of this Lease and on an annual basis thereafter, Landlord 
shall provide to Tenant a statement of estimated Additional Rent.  Tenant shall pay its share of the 
estimated Additional Rent in equal monthly installments.  Following the end of each calendar year, 
Landlord shall provide Tenant a statement of actual Additional Rent (“Actual Additional Rent”) for 
the preceding year.  If Tenant's Pro Rata Share of Actual Additional Rent is less than the amount of 
Additional Rent paid by Tenant for such year, Landlord shall credit Tenant the difference between 
the Additional Rent paid by Tenant and Tenant's Pro Rata Share of Actual Additional Rent for such 
year.  If Tenant's Pro Rata Share of Actual Additional Rent for the year exceeds the amount of 
Additional Rent paid by Tenant, Tenant shall pay to Landlord, within thirty (30) days of receipt of 
the statement from Landlord, the difference between the Additional Rent paid by Tenant for the 
year and Tenant's share of Actual Additional Rent for such year.  In the event of any dispute with 
respect to any Additional Rent owed by Tenant, Tenant shall pay the amount due in accordance 
with the applicable statement, and such payment shall be without prejudice to Tenant's position.  If 
the dispute shall be resolved in Tenant's favor, by agreement or otherwise, Landlord shall pay to 
Tenant the amount of Tenant's overpayment.  Tenant shall be bound by any statement of Actual 
Additional Rent not objected to within thirty (30) days after receipt by Tenant thereof. 
 
3.4  Calculation of Tenant's Pro Rata Share of Additional Rent.  Tenant's Building Pro 
Rata Share shall be a fraction, the numerator of which shall be the number of gross square feet of 
rentable floor area in the Premises (964 feet) and the denominator of which shall be the number of 
gross square feet of rentable floor area in the Building (91,502 square feet).  Expressed as a 
percentage, Tenant’s Building Pro Rata Share is 1.05%.  Tenant's Commercial Space Pro Rata 
Share shall be a fraction, the numerator of which shall be the number of gross square feet of 
rentable floor area in the Premises (964 feet) and the denominator of which shall be the number of 
gross square feet of rentable floor area of the Commercial Space (20,944 feet).  Expressed as a 
percentage, Tenant’s Commercial Space Pro Rata Share is 4.60%.   
 
3.5  Past Due Rents.  If Tenant fails to pay any Rent when due, the unpaid Rent shall 
accrue interest from the date due to the date of payment at the rate of eight percent (8.00%) per 
annum.  In addition to interest, Tenant shall be assessed a late charge in the amount of $200.00 if 
Tenant fails to pay its Rent within five (5) days of the date such payment is due.   
 

K - 1 -10



 
 7 

 
ARTICLE 4 

 
TAXES 

 
4.1  General.  Tenant shall, in all instances, pay its Commercial Space Pro Rata Share of 
all payments made for or in lieu of real estate taxes that may be levied or assessed by the lawful 
taxing authorities against the land, building and all other improvements and betterments 
constituting the Commercial Space.  Landlord specifically reserves the right to make or have made 
payments in lieu of real estate taxes provided under this Section.   The term “Taxes” shall mean and 
include all real estate taxes or payments in lieu of taxes, assessments, water and sewer rents and 
other governmental levies and charges of every kind and nature whatsoever, general and special, 
extraordinary as well as ordinary, foreseen and unforeseen, and each and every installment thereof, 
which shall or may, during the period beginning on the date the Term commences hereunder and 
ending on the last day of this Lease, be levied, assessed, imposed or become due and payable; or 
liens upon, or amounts which arise in connection with the use, occupancy or possession of, or grow 
due and payable out of or for, the Commercial Space or any part thereof, or any land, buildings or 
other improvements therein (as initially constructed or as the same may at any time thereafter be 
enlarged or reduced), including interest on installment payments and all costs and fees (including 
Attorneys' fees) incurred by Landlord in contesting Taxes, assessments and/or negotiating with the 
public authorities as to the same.  Nothing herein contained shall be construed to include as 
“Taxes” any inheritance, estate, succession, transfer, gift, franchise, corporation, income or profit 
tax or capital levy that is or may be imposed upon Landlord, provided; however, that, if at any time 
during the Term of this Lease the methods of taxation prevailing at the commencement of the Term 
of this Lease shall be altered so that in addition to or in lieu of or as a substitute for the whole or any 
part of the Taxes now levied, assessed or imposed on real estate as such there shall be levied, 
assessed or imposed (a) a tax on the rents received from such real estate, or (b) a license fee 
measured by rents receivable by Landlord for the Commercial Space or any portion thereof, or (c) a 
tax or license imposed upon Landlord which is otherwise measured by or based in whole or in part 
upon the Commercial Space or any portion thereof, then the same shall be included in the 
computation of Taxes, computed as if the amount of such tax or fee so payable were that part due if 
the Commercial Space were the only property of Landlord subject thereto.  Any tax year 
commencing during any lease year shall be deemed to correspond to such lease year.  Said taxes 
shall be equitably prorated during the first and last lease years of the Term of this Lease.  Landlord 
shall have the sole, absolute and unrestricted right, but not the obligation, to contest the validity or 
amount of any Tax by appropriate proceedings, and if Landlord shall institute any such contest on 
its own volition, it shall be the sole, absolute and unrestricted right to settle any contest, proceeding 
or action upon whatever terms Landlord may, in its sole discretion, determine.  In the event 
Landlord receives any refund of such Taxes (and provided no “Event of Default” has occurred 
hereunder which has not been cured and no event has occurred which but for the giving of notice or 
the passage of time or both would constitute an “Event of Default”) Landlord shall credit such 
proportion of such refund as shall be allocable to payments of Taxes actually made by Tenant (less 
costs, expenses and attorneys' fees) against the next succeeding payments of Taxes due from 
Tenant. 
 

K - 1 -11



 
 8 

4.2  Taxes on Tenant's Personality.  Tenant agrees to pay, prior to delinquency, any and 
all taxes and assessments levied or assessed during the Term hereof upon or against (a) all furniture, 
fixtures, equipment and any other personal property within the Premises, (b) all alterations, 
additions, betterments or improvements of whatsoever kind or nature, made by Tenant to the 
Premises.  If at any time during the Term of this Lease any of the Taxes or assessments mentioned 
in this Section 4.2 are levied or assessed against the Commercial Space, Tenant shall pay to 
Landlord the amount thereof. 
 
4.3  Future Tax Collectible by Landlord.  Should any governmental authority require that 
a tax, other than the Taxes mentioned above, be paid by Tenant, but collected by Landlord, for and 
on behalf of said governmental authority, and from time to time forwarded by Landlord to said 
governmental authority, the same shall be paid by Tenant to Landlord, and be collectible by 
Landlord, and payment thereof enforced in the same fashion as provided for the enforcement of 
payment thereof, shall be deemed Additional Rent hereunder, payable monthly upon the first day of 
the next month following demand. 
 

ARTICLE 5 
 

COMMON AREAS 
 
5.1  Designation of Common Areas.  The common areas of the Commercial Space 
(“Common Areas”) include all exterior and interior common areas, all lobbies, stairways, corridors, 
hallways, rest rooms, sidewalks, curbs and aisles, common to the Commercial Space and not 
located exclusively within and serving exclusively any individual tenant space, and including all 
amenities or improvements existing for the non-exclusive use, convenience and benefit of tenants 
of the Commercial Space, their customers, employees, visitors and invitees.  Landlord may 
designate appropriate portions of Common Areas for the exclusive use of patrons or employees of 
Tenant or patrons or employees of other occupants of the Commercial Space, and Tenant shall 
comply with any such designation of Common Areas. 
 
5.2  Control of Common Areas.  Landlord shall retain exclusive control and 
management of the Common Areas, and Tenant shall abide by Landlord's rules and policies.  
Landlord may close any part of the Common Areas as it deems necessary for the benefit of all 
tenants or for emergency or unusual situations or conditions.  Any such closing shall be for limited 
times only and shall not interfere with Tenant's use and occupancy of the Premises during normal 
business hours, if possible.  Landlord may refuse entry to the Commercial Space or the Premises 
outside of normal business hours to any persons not properly identified as an employee of Tenant.  
This Section shall not prohibit the delivery of merchandise or supplies to Tenant.  Landlord further 
may cause any person to be removed from the Commercial Space whose conduct or behavior may 
be harmful to the safety or best interests of any tenant or its property or Landlord or its property. 
 
5.3  Landlord's Responsibilities for Repair and Maintenance of Common Areas.  
Landlord shall operate, maintain and repair the Common Areas including the roof, foundation, 
structural elements and sidewalks in the same condition as of the date of this Agreement, subject to 
ordinary wear and tear. 

K - 1 -12



 
 9 

 
5.4  Tenant's Responsibilities for Share of Common Area Repair and Maintenance 
Costs.  Tenant shall pay to Landlord as Additional Rent its Building Pro Rata Share or Commercial 
Space Pro Rata Share (as set forth in Section 3.3) of operation, maintenance, and repair costs for the 
Common Areas (“Common Area Costs”).  Common Area Costs include the total cost and expense 
of operation, maintenance and repair of the Common Areas of the Commercial Space including 
(but not limited to) building operation, maintenance and repair, gardening and landscaping costs, 
Common Areas repair, maintenance and replacement costs, cost of public liability and property 
damage insurance, Common Areas utilities, lighting , sanitary control, snow removal, trash, 
rubbish, garbage and other refuse service costs, depreciation, maintenance and repairs of equipment 
used in such operation, personnel costs and administrative and overhead costs equal to 10% of the 
Common Area Costs. 
 

ARTICLE 6 
 

INDEMNITY-INSURANCE-WAIVER OF SUBROGATION 
 
6.1  Indemnity.   
 
 (a) Tenant hereby agrees to defend, pay, indemnify and save free and harmless 
Landlord, and WU and/or any other fee owner or ground or underlying lessor of the Commercial 
Space, from and against any and all claims, demands, fines, suits, actions, proceedings, orders, 
decrees and judgments of any kind or nature by or in favor of anyone whomsoever and from and 
against any and all costs and expenses, including attorneys' fees, resulting from or in connection 
with loss of life, bodily or personal injury or property damage arising, directly or indirectly, out of 
or from or on account of any occurrence in, upon, at or from the Premises or occasioned wholly or 
in part through the use and occupancy of the Premises or any improvements therein or 
appurtenances thereto, or by any act or omission of Tenant or any subtenant, concessionaire or 
licensee of Tenant, or their respective employees, agents, contractors or invitees in, upon, at or from 
the Premises or its appurtenances or any Common Areas of the Commercial Space. 
 
 (b) Tenant and all those claiming by, through or under Tenant hereby release Landlord 
and WU, to the full extent permitted by law, from all claims of every kind, including loss of life, 
personal or bodily injury, damage to merchandise, equipment, fixtures or other property, or damage 
to business or from business interruption, arising, directly or indirectly, out of or from or on account 
of such occupancy and use or resulting from any present or future condition or state of repair 
thereof. 
 
 (c) Landlord and WU shall not be responsible or liable at any time to Tenant, or to 
those claiming by, through or under Tenant, for any loss of life, bodily or personal injury or damage 
to property of business, or for business interruption, that may be occasioned by or through the acts, 
omissions or negligence of any other persons, or any other tenants or occupants of the Commercial 
Space. 
 
 (d) Landlord shall not be responsible or liable at any time for any defects, latent or 

K - 1 -13



 
 10 

otherwise, in any buildings or improvements in the Commercial Space or the Building or any of the 
equipment, machinery, utilities, appliances or apparatus therein, nor shall Landlord be responsible 
or liable at any time for loss of life, or injury or damage to any person or to any property or business 
of Tenant, or those claiming by, through or under Tenant, caused by or resulting from the bursting, 
breaking, leaking, running, seeping, overflowing or backing up of water, steam, gas, sewage, snow 
or ice in any part of the Premises or the Commercial Space or the Building or caused by or resulting 
from acts of God or the elements, or resulting from any defect or negligence in the occupancy, 
construction, operation or use of any part of the Commercial Space, including the Premises, or the 
Building or any of the equipment, fixtures, machinery, appliances or apparatus therein. 
 
 (e) Tenant and all those claiming by, through or under Tenant shall store their property 
in and shall occupy and use the Premises and any improvements therein and appurtenances thereto 
and all other portions of Commercial Space solely at their own risk. 
 
 (f)  Tenant shall give prompt notice to Landlord in case of fire or other casualty or 
accidents in the Premises or in the Commercial Space or of any defects therein or in any of its 
fixtures, machinery or equipment. 
 
 (g)  Tenant expressly acknowledges that all of the foregoing provisions of this Section 
shall apply and become effective from and after the date Landlord shall deliver possession of the 
Premises to Tenant in accordance with the terms of this Lease or, if earlier, upon the date Tenant is 
granted access to the Premises. 
 
6.2  Waiver of Subrogation.   
 
 (a) Landlord hereby waives any rights it may have against Tenant on account of any 
loss or damage occasioned to the Landlord or its property arising from any risk actually covered by 
a fire and extended coverage insurance policy underwritten through a third party insurance 
company (thus excluding any plan or program of self-insurance) maintained by Landlord; and 
Landlord, on behalf of any such insurance companies waives any right of subrogation it may have 
against Tenant to the extent such waiver of subrogation is available without invalidating Landlord's 
insurance coverage. 
 
 (b) Tenant hereby waives any rights it may have against Landlord on account of any 
loss or damage occasioned to the Tenant or its property arising from any risk actually covered by an 
insurance policy underwritten through a third party insurance company maintained by Tenant; and 
Tenant, on behalf of any such insurance companies waives any right of subrogation it may have 
against Landlord to the extent such waiver of subrogation is available without invalidating Tenant's 
insurance coverage. 
 
 (c) The waiver and release of subrogation rights provided for in subsections (a) and (b) 
above shall apply if and only to the extent insurance proceeds are in fact paid to or for the account 
of the party waiving and releasing such rights. 
 
6.3  Tenant's Insurance.  Tenant further covenants and agrees that from and after the date 

K - 1 -14



 
 11 

of delivery of the Premises from Landlord to Tenant, Tenant will carry and maintain, at its sole cost 
and expense, the following types of insurance, in the amounts specified and in the form hereinafter 
provided for: 
 
 (a) PUBLIC LIABILITY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE.  Bodily injury liability 
insurance with limits of not less than Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000.00) per person and 
One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per occurrence insuring against any and all liability of the 
insured with respect to the Premises or arising out of the maintenance, use or occupancy thereof, 
and property damage liability insurance with a limit of not less than Five Hundred Thousand 
Dollars ($500,000.00) per accident or occurrence or in the alternative, at Tenant's option, One 
Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) combined single limit coverage.  All such bodily injury liability 
insurance and property damage liability insurance shall be general and comprehensive in scope and 
form and specifically include, in addition to the above, contractual liability insurance covering the 
insuring provisions of this Lease, the performance by Tenant of the indemnity agreement as to 
liability for injury to or death of persons and injury or damage to property in this Article, contained 
and liability insurance covering risks of loss associated with the sale or consumption of alcoholic 
beverages within the Premises. 
 
 (b) PLATE GLASS.  Tenant shall be responsible for the maintenance of any plate glass 
in the Premises and shall insure the risks of public liability associated with the plate glass. 
 
 (c) FIXTURES.  Insurance covering all trade fixtures, merchandise and personal 
property from time to time in, on or upon the Premises, in an amount not less than eighty percent 
(80%) of their full replacement cost during the term of this Lease, providing protection against any 
peril included within the classification “Fire and Extended Coverage,” together with insurance 
against sprinkler leakage, vandalism and malicious mischief.  Any policy proceeds shall be used for 
the repair or replacement of the property damaged or destroyed. 
 
 (d) POLICY FORM.  All policies of insurance provided for herein shall be issued by 
insurance companies, with general policy holder's rating of not less than A and a financial rating of 
AAA as rated in the most current available “Best's” Insurance Reports, and qualified to do business 
in the State of Missouri, and shall be issued in the name of Landlord, WU, Landlord's designees and 
Tenant, which policies shall be for the mutual and joint benefit and protection of Landlord, WU, 
Landlord's designees and Tenant, and executed copies of such policies of insurance or certificates 
thereof shall be delivered to Landlord within ten (10) days after delivery of possession of the 
Premises to Tenant and thereafter within thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of the term of each 
such policy.  All public liability and property damage policies shall contain a provision that 
Landlord, although named as an insured, shall nevertheless be entitled to recovery under said 
policies for any loss occasioned to it, its servants, agents and employees by reason of the negligence 
of Tenant.  All policies of insurance mentioned in this Article shall contain the following 
endorsements:  (i) that such insurance may not be cancelled or amended with respect to Landlord 
except upon fifteen (15) days prior written notice from the insurance company to Landlord, sent by 
certified or registered mail, return receipt requested; (ii) that Tenant shall be solely responsible for 
the payment of all premiums under such policy and that Landlord shall have no obligation for the 
payment thereof; (iii) that in the event of payment of any loss covered by such policy, Landlord 

K - 1 -15



 
 12 

shall be paid first by the insurance company for its loss; and (iv) an express waiver of any right of 
subrogation by the insurance company against Landlord.  As often as any such policy shall expire or 
terminate, renewal or additional policies shall be procured and maintained by Tenant in like manner 
and to like extent.  All public liability, property damage and other casualty polices shall be written 
as primary policies, not contribution with and not in excess of coverage which Landlord or WU 
may carry.  The minimum limits of any insurance coverage to be maintained by Tenant hereunder 
shall not limit Tenant's liability under Section 6.1 hereof. 
 
 (e) RENT INSURANCE.  Tenant shall also maintain at its expense at all times during 
the Term of this Lease a rent insurance policy naming Landlord as insured, insuring Landlord 
against the failure of Tenant to pay the Rent provided herein for a period of twelve (12) months by 
reason of the damage or destruction of the Premises by fire, the elements, accident or other 
insurable casualty. 
 
6.4  Landlord's Insurance.  Landlord at all times during the term hereof shall maintain in 
effect a policy or policies of insurance covering Commercial Space, including Tenant's leasehold 
improvements, but not the Tenant's trade fixtures, merchandise, inventory, or other items used in 
the Tenant's trade or business, in an amount at least equal to eighty percent (80%) of full 
replacement cost (exclusive of the cost of excavations, foundations and footings) from time to time 
during the term of this Lease, providing protection against any peril generally included within the 
classification “Fire and Extended Coverage” (or at Landlord's option, other special broad form 
coverages), together with insurance against sprinkler leakage and vandalism and malicious 
mischief.  Landlord's obligation to carry the insurance provided for herein may be brought within 
the coverage of a so-called blanket policy or policies of insurance or self-insurance plans carried or 
maintained by Landlord or WU or at Landlord's option, Landlord may self insure, provided that the 
coverage afforded will not be reduced or diminished by reason of the use of such blanket policy of 
insurance or self-insurance. 
 
6.5  Tenant Prohibited From Stocking, Using, or Selling Certain Items; Landlord's 
Remedies.  Tenant shall not permit any article to be brought onto the Premises or do anything in or 
about the Premises which may be prohibited by or violate any of Landlord's insurance policies or 
plans or the rules and regulations of the fire insurance rating organization having jurisdiction or any 
similar body, or which will increase any insurance rates and premiums on the Premises, or any part 
of the Commercial Space or the Building.  If as a result of any failure of Tenant, or anyone claiming 
by, through or under Tenant, to comply with the foregoing sentence of this Section, the insurance 
rates applicable to any policies of insurance carried by Landlord covering the Commercial Space or 
the Building or the rental income to be derived therefrom shall be increased, Tenant agrees to pay 
Landlord within ten (10) days after Landlord's written demand therefor, as Additional Rent, the 
entire portion of the premiums for said insurance which shall be attributable to such higher rates. 
 

ARTICLE 7 
 

SECURITY DEPOSIT 
 
7.1  Deposit Amount.  Upon execution of this Lease, Tenant shall deposit with Landlord 

K - 1 -16



 
 13 

the sum of $3,052.66 to be held by Landlord as security for Tenant's faithful performance of the 
terms, conditions and covenants of this Lease. 
 
7.2  Use and Return of Security Deposit.  Upon Tenant's performance of the terms, 
conditions and covenants of this Lease and payment of all Rent due, Landlord shall return to Tenant 
the security deposit at the expiration of the Term, or upon earlier termination of this Lease.  If 
Tenant is overdue in a payment of any Rent under this Lease, Landlord may apply any portion of 
the security deposit to the overdue Rent.  Further, if Tenant fails to honor or perform any of the 
other terms, conditions and covenants of this Lease, Landlord may apply any portion of the security 
deposit as necessary to compensate Landlord for all losses or damages sustained or suffered by 
Landlord as the result of Tenant's breach.  In the event Landlord applies any portion of the security 
deposit to the payment of overdue Rent or to compensate Landlord for losses or damages sustained 
as a result of Tenant's breach of any other terms, conditions or covenants of this Lease, Tenant shall 
remit to Landlord a sufficient amount to restore the security deposit to the original sum deposited 
with Landlord.  Tenant shall remit such additional amount within five (5) days of Landlord's written 
demand therefore.  Tenant's failure to remit such additional amount shall constitute a breach of this 
Lease. 
 

ARTICLE 8 
 

USE AND OCCUPANCY 
 
8.1  Operation of Business.  Tenant shall use the Premises only for purposes of operating 
a restaurant serving Japanese food under the name “Nobu Japanese Restaurant.”  Tenant shall keep 
the entire Premises open for business during regular business hours, usual and customary with other 
like businesses in the competitive area.  Tenant will conduct its business in a reputable manner 
consistent with other like businesses in the competitive area, and will maintain the Premises in a 
neat and clean condition.   
 
8.2  Alcohol.  Sale or service of alcoholic beverages, for on-site consumption or 
otherwise, is permitted, subject, however, to the limitation and condition that during any period of 
three (3) or more consecutive months gross receipts from sale or service of alcoholic beverages may 
not exceed thirty percent (30%) of total gross receipts from Tenant’s operation of the Premises.  
Upon request, Tenant shall provide monthly reports to Landlord as to the amount of gross receipts 
from sale or service of alcoholic beverages and total gross receipts.  In the event any such report 
discloses that sale or service of alcoholic beverages, for on-site consumption or otherwise, exceeds 
the foregoing limitation for three (3) or more consecutive months, Landlord may on notice to 
Tenant given not later than ninety (90) days following Landlord’s receipt of such report, terminate 
and cancel this Lease, effective not less than ninety (90) days following the date such notice is 
given to Tenant.  Tenant shall be solely responsible to obtain and maintain all necessary licenses 
and approvals from the appropriate governing jurisdictions for the service of alcoholic beverages.   
 
8.3  Tobacco Prohibition.  Owner strictly prohibits all smoking and other uses of tobacco 
or vaping products within the Building and associated grounds including all interior and exterior 
Common Areas at all times.  Tenant will comply, and will require its employees, patrons and 

K - 1 -17



 
 14 

invitees to comply, with the foregoing prohibition. 
 
8.4  Cannabis.  The sale or service of cannabis, cannabidiol (CBD), marijuana, hemp 
and/or products composed in whole or in part of any of the foregoing is strictly prohibited. 
 
8.5  Weapons.  Weapons or firearms of any kind, concealed or otherwise, are expressly 
prohibited throughout the Premises and/or the Building.  Landlord at its expense shall be entitled to 
post such signage in and about the Premises and the Building as Landlord deems appropriate 
prohibiting weapons or firearms. 
 
8.6  Use and Maintenance of Premises.  At all times during the term of this Lease, 
Tenant shall keep the Premises, including all windows, signs, loading docks and other areas 
allocated for the sole use of the Tenant in reasonably neat and clean condition.  Tenant shall not 
permit or allow any act or practice which may damage the Premises or the Commercial Space or 
any act or practice constituting a common nuisance to other tenants, or keep merchandise on or 
obstruct any Common Areas or burn any trash or rubbish in, or on or about the Premises.  Tenant 
shall not change the exterior color of the Premises or the color, size or location of any sign 
approved by Landlord or install any exterior lighting, loudspeakers, radio broadcasts or other 
advertising medium that can be heard or experienced outside the Premises.  Tenant shall use and 
occupy the Premises strictly in compliance with all laws, regulations and codes applicable to the 
Premises and the Tenant's use and occupancy thereof including, without limitation, liquor license 
control laws and regulations.  Tenant shall comply with all rules and regulations prepared by 
Landlord for all tenants for the use and occupancy of the Common Areas or any part of the 
Commercial Space.  Landlord shall have no responsibility to Tenant for violations of any rules or 
regulations by other tenants nor shall violations of any rules or regulations by any tenant excuse 
Tenant from complying with such rules and regulations.  Tenant shall dispose of all trash and 
rubbish in receptacles provided therefor at the Premises.   
 
8.7  Hazardous Substances. 
 
 (a) Tenant shall not cause or permit any Hazardous Substance to be used, stored, 
generated, or disposed of on or in the Premises by Tenant, Tenant's agents, employees, contractors 
or invitees, without first obtaining Landlord's written consent, which may be withheld at the 
Landlord's sole and absolute discretion.  If Hazardous Substances are used, stored, generated, or 
disposed of on or in the Premises, or if the Premises become contaminated in any manner for which 
Tenant is legally liable, Tenant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Landlord from any 
and all claims, damages, fines, judgments, penalties, costs, liabilities, or losses (including, without 
limitation, a decrease in value of the Premises for the building(s) of which they are a part, damages 
because of adverse impact on marketing of the space, and any and all sums paid for settlement of 
claims, attorneys', consultant, and expert fees) arising during or after the Term and arising as a 
result of such contamination by Tenant.  This indemnification includes, without limitation, any and 
all costs incurred because of any investigation of the site or any cleanup, removal, or restoration 
mandated by a federal, state, or local agency or political subdivision.  In addition, if Tenant causes 
or permits the presence of any Hazardous Substance on the Premises and this results in 
contamination, Tenant shall promptly, at its sole expense, take any and all necessary actions to 

K - 1 -18



 
 15 

return the Premises to the condition existing before the presence of any such Hazardous Substance 
on the Premises, provided, however, that Tenant shall first obtain Landlord's approval for any such 
remedial action. 
 
 (b) As used herein, “Hazardous Substance” means any substance that is toxic, ignitable, 
reactive, or corrosive and that is regulated by any local government, the State of Missouri, or the 
United States government.  “Hazardous Substance” includes any and all material or substances that 
are defined as “hazardous waste,” “extremely hazardous waste,” or a “hazardous substance,” 
pursuant to state, federal, or local governmental law.  “Hazardous Substance” includes, but it not 
restricted, to asbestos, pholycholorinated biphenyls (“PCBs”), and petroleum. 
 
8.8  Compliance With Americans With Disabilities Act.  Notwithstanding anything to 
the contrary contained in this Lease, in the event Tenant or its use or occupancy of the Premises 
shall at any time during the term hereof come within the purview of the Americans with Disabilities 
Act (the “Act”), Tenant shall, at its sole cost and expense and with the prior written approval of 
Landlord, take such actions and construct or cause to be constructed such alterations as shall be 
necessary to bring the Premises and Tenant's use and occupancy thereof into compliance with the 
Act.  In the event any such action and/or alteration to the Premises shall necessitate, pursuant to the 
Act, any alteration or change to any portion of the Building other than the Premises or to the real 
estate on which the Building is located, Tenant, at its sole cost and expense and with the prior 
written approval of Landlord, shall take such actions and construct or cause to be constructed such 
alterations to the Building and/or real estate or any part thereof as shall be required by the Act.  All 
such actions and alterations taken by Tenant in furtherance of this paragraph shall be subject to the 
terms of this Lease and the requirements of the Act, and any such alteration shall become the 
property of the Landlord upon the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease. 
 

ARTICLE 9 
 

TENANT'S IMPROVEMENTS 
 
9.1  Landlord's Approval.  Tenant shall not make any alterations, additions or 
improvements or install any equipment, trade fixtures, signs, floor coverings, interior or exterior 
lighting, plumbing fixtures or otherwise make any changes to the Premises (collectively “Tenant's 
Improvements”) without Landlord's prior written approval in each instance in the manner set forth 
in Section 1.4 above.  Prior to commencing any Tenant's Improvements, Tenant shall provide 
Landlord with a letter (the “Work Letter”) and plans requesting Landlord's approval of the proposed 
Tenant's Improvements.  The Work Letter and plans shall contain complete information regarding 
all electrical, plumbing, structural, architectural, mechanical and engineering plans for the proposed 
Tenant's Improvements. 
 
9.2  Tenant's Responsibility; Tenant's Property.  Landlord shall provide Tenant with 
access to the Premises prior to commencement of the Initial Period for purposes of inspecting the 
completion of Tenant's Improvements and to install fixtures and equipment.  Any such access to the 
Premises prior to the Initial Period shall be at the Tenant's sole risk, and Landlord shall not be liable 
for any costs incurred by Tenant in connection with the Tenant's Improvements.  Tenant's right to 

K - 1 -19



 
 16 

install fixtures and equipment prior to the commencement of the Initial Period shall be subject to all 
the terms, conditions, and covenants of this Lease other than the requirements for the payment of 
Rent.  Tenant shall install fixtures and equipment in the Premises with due diligence and in 
accordance with Landlord's rules and regulations and with any laws, rules, regulations and orders of 
governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Premises.  In completing Tenant's 
Improvements, Tenant shall not permit or allow any act or practice constituting a common nuisance 
or which may disrupt or interfere with Landlord or other tenants or work being done by them.  
Tenant shall obtain and provide to Landlord any required certificates or approvals required of any 
governmental authority, regulatory body or agency.  All fixtures installed by Tenant shall be new or 
completely reconditioned.  Landlord disclaims all responsibility for any damage or loss to Tenant's 
fixtures or equipment installed or left in the Premises.  All alterations, decorations, additions, 
improvements, fixtures and equipment made or installed by Tenant that are not permanently affixed 
to the Premises shall remain the property of Tenant.  Any alterations, decorations, additions, 
improvements, fixtures or equipment made or installed may not be removed from the Premises 
prior to the expiration of the lease without the prior written consent of Landlord.  At the expiration 
of the Lease, Tenant shall remove all non-permanent alterations, decorations, additions, 
improvements, fixtures and equipment and shall restore the Premises to its original condition, 
ordinary wear and tear excepted.  If Tenant fails to remove such alterations, decorations, additions, 
improvements, fixtures and equipment and restore the Premises to its original condition, all such 
alterations, decorations, additions, improvements, fixtures and equipment shall become the property 
of the Landlord. 
 

ARTICLE 10 
 

MECHANIC'S LIENS 
 
10.1  Tenant's Responsibility to Pay.  Tenant agrees to pay all costs for work done by or 
for Tenant on the Premises, and Tenant agrees to indemnify and save Landlord harmless from any 
loss, damages, costs, including attorneys' fees, or other expenses or liabilities arising from claims or 
liens of laborers or materialmen for work or materials provided to Tenant on the Premises.   
 
10.2  Security For Liens.  Landlord may, at its option, require Tenant to provide a bond 
issued by a corporate surety approved by Landlord to secure the cost of any Tenant's Improvements. 
 In the event a claim or lien is asserted for work or materials provided to Tenant on the Premises, 
Tenant may contest any such claim or lien in which event it shall furnish Landlord adequate 
security in the amount of the claim or lien, plus estimated costs and interest.  In the alternative, 
Tenant may provide Landlord a bond issued by a corporate surety approved by Landlord in the 
amount of the claim or lien.  If the validity of a claim or lien is established by final judgment, court 
order or settlement, Tenant shall satisfy the claim or lien.  If Tenant fails to pay any charges for 
which a claim or lien has been filed or fails to provide security to Landlord against such claim or 
lien as required by this Section, Landlord reserves the right to pay the lien and any related costs, 
including reasonable attorneys' fees, and Tenant shall pay to Landlord the amount of such payments 
made by Landlord, with interest at the maximum rate allowed by law.  If any lien or other action 
affecting the title or interest of the Premises shall be filed, the party receiving notice of such lien or 
action shall immediately give written notice to the other party. 

K - 1 -20



 
 17 

 
ARTICLE 11 

 
UTILITIES 

 
  Tenant shall assume responsibility for the installation and use of all utilities, 
including water, gas, electricity, sewer and telephone for the Premises in accordance with the rules 
and regulations of Landlord and the public utility or governmental agency supplying such utility.  
Landlord shall not be liable for any interruption in the supply of utilities to the Premises, nor shall 
interruption of services entitle Tenant to any abatement of Rent.  If Tenant desires to install any 
equipment that requires additional or increased utility facilities or services, Tenant must obtain 
Landlord's prior written approval.  Tenant shall pay the cost of any such additional or increased 
utility facilities or service.  Tenant shall install, replace, repair and maintain utility lines, pipes, 
conduits, and facilities from the Premises to Landlord's utility terminals at its sole cost and expense. 
 Such lines, pipes, conduits and facilities shall be of a like quality, type and design as prescribed by 
Landlord.  Tenant shall be solely responsible for the cost of all water, electricity, gas and any other 
utilities that are separately metered to the Premises.  Tenant shall reimburse Landlord for Tenant’s 
Building Pro Rata Share of Landlord’s expenses for any utilities serving the Building that are not 
separately metered to the Premises.   
 

ARTICLE 12 
 

SUBLEASING AND ASSIGNMENT 
 
  In view of the location of the Building in close proximity to the North Campus and 
Danforth Campus of WU and in view of the special reliance of Landlord and WU on Tenant’s 
personal credentials, no assignment or subletting shall be permitted except with the prior written 
consent of Landlord in its sole discretion.  If Tenant is a business entity, any change of ownership or 
control shall be deemed an assignment for which Landlord’s consent is required; provided, that this 
shall not preclude Tenant from adding members to its business entity so long as Noboru Kidera, 
Taeko Kidera, and George S. Kidera or any one or more of them collectively at all times maintain 
more than 50% ownership and control of the business entity.  Tenant shall not grant any concession 
or license of any part of the Premises without the prior written consent of Landlord.  If this Lease is 
assigned or sublet, and in the event Tenant has defaulted or failed to honor or perform any terms, 
covenants and conditions of this Lease, Landlord may collect rent from any assignee, sublessee or 
occupant and apply the amount collected to the rent and other obligations of Tenant.  No 
assignment, sublease, occupancy or collection of rents by Landlord shall be deemed a waiver or 
release of Tenant from further performance of the terms, conditions and covenants of the Lease.  In 
the event of any assignment, sublease, concession or license by Tenant, Tenant shall not be relieved 
of any such obligations.  Landlord's consent to any assignment or sublease or concession or license 
shall not authorize any subsequent assignment, sublease, concession or license without the prior 
written consent of Landlord. 
 

ARTICLE 13 
 

K - 1 -21



 
 18 

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE 
 
13.1  Landlord's Obligations.  Landlord shall keep, maintain and repair in good and 
operable condition the Building’s structural components, roof, foundation, exterior walls (excluding 
plate glass), exterior lighting, areas common to the building, and all exterior utility service pipes 
and lines.  Landlord shall also be responsible for a one-time replacement of the HVAC system, 
should the HVAC be in need of replacement during Tenant’s occupancy of the Premises, and so 
long as the need for replacement is not due to the Tenant’s failure to contract with a qualified 
HVAC contractor to perform routine maintenance and repairs. Landlord shall not be required to 
make any repairs caused by Tenant's negligence or Tenant's failure to perform or honor any terms, 
conditions or covenants of this Lease.  Landlord shall not be required to make repairs to any 
alterations, additions or improvements made by Tenant or to any initial tenant finish improvements 
made by Landlord for Tenant pursuant to Section 1.4 above. 
 
13.2  Tenant's Obligations.  Tenant shall keep, repair and maintain the Premises in good 
and operable condition and in conformity to applicable laws and regulations.  Tenant's obligation 
under this Section shall include maintenance and repair of interior utility meters, pipes and 
conduits, all fixtures, HVAC equipment serving the Premises (except as set forth in Section 13.1) 
and all other equipment located in the Premises in addition to the store front, Tenant's signs, locks 
and security devices, all window and door frames, casements or treatments and all other such items 
of repair, maintenance and improvement which may be required by governmental agencies having 
jurisdiction over the Premises.  Tenant at its sole cost and expense shall contract with a reputable 
service company for both (a) the regular maintenance of the HVAC equipment and (b) the regular 
maintenance of the kitchen exhaust fan, in each case in accordance with all industry standards for 
such equipment.  The kitchen exhaust fan shall be cleaned no less than one (1) time every six (6) 
months or more frequently if prescribed by the equipment manufacturer or industry standards.  
Within ten (10) days of Tenant opening for business, Tenant shall provide copies of the service 
contracts to Landlord, as well as updated copies of the service contracts, in the event that any 
changes are made during the Term.  Tenant shall also be responsible for proper maintenance and 
repair of any additions, alterations, decorations or improvements made or installed and including all 
glass located on the Premises, both exterior and interior.   
 
13.3  Landlord's Repairs for Tenant.  If Tenant fails to repair or maintain the Premises as 
required by this Section, Landlord may make such repairs or maintenance on Tenant's behalf after 
providing Tenant written notice of its intent to make such repairs or maintenance.  If Landlord 
makes such repairs or maintenance on Tenant's behalf, Tenant shall promptly reimburse Landlord 
for the repairs or maintenance made. 
 
13.4  Landlord's Right to Entry Upon Premises.  Landlord may enter the Premises at all 
times during normal business hours for the purposes of inspection and to make any repairs required 
by any governing authority or agency or Landlord's insurer or to prevent waste or deterioration of 
the Commercial Space or the Premises or to otherwise make such repairs or maintenance required 
to be made by Tenant but which have not been made.  This Section shall not impose on Landlord 
any duty to perform any repair or maintenance that is not otherwise Landlord's obligation under this 
Lease.  Landlord, its authorized agents and representatives, including contractors, may enter the 

K - 1 -22



 
 19 

Premises at reasonable times as necessary to inspect, make repairs or maintenance or remodel 
adjacent premises of the Commercial Space.  Any such entry shall be performed so as to cause 
minimal inconvenience to Tenant and any damage to Premises as a result of such repairs, 
maintenance or remodeling of adjacent premises shall be repaired at Landlord's sole expense.  
Landlord shall in no event be liable for any inconvenience, disturbance, loss of business or other 
damage to Tenant by reason of the performance by Landlord of any work in, upon, above, or under 
the Premises or for bringing material, tools and equipment in, through or above the Premises during 
the course thereof, and the obligations of Tenant under this Lease shall not thereby be affected in 
any manner whatsoever, nor shall the same entitle Tenant to an abatement of any Rent.  If Tenant or 
Tenant's employees shall not be personally present to permit an entry into the Premises when for 
any reason an entry therein shall be permissible, Landlord may enter the same by the use of force or 
otherwise without rendering Landlord liable for same and without in any manner affecting Tenant's 
obligations under this Lease.  During the period commencing six (6) months prior to the expiration 
of the Term of this Lease (or any renewal term thereof), Landlord may show the Premises from 
time to time to prospective tenants. 
 

ARTICLE 14 
 

DESTRUCTION; CONDEMNATION 
 
14.1  Total or Partial Destruction of Premises.  If the Premises shall be partially damaged 
by fire, explosion, the elements, accident or other insurable casualty, Landlord shall at its own 
expense promptly cause such damage to be repaired, and the rent shall not be abated.  If the 
Premises shall be rendered wholly untenantable by reason of such occurrence, Landlord shall have 
the right, to be exercised by notice in writing delivered to Tenant within sixty (60) days from and 
after said occurrence, to elect not to reconstruct the Premises, and in such event this Lease shall 
cease as of the date of the said occurrence. 
 
14.2  Partial Destruction of Building.  In the event that forty (40%) percent or more of the 
Building shall be damaged or destroyed by fire, explosion, or other act of God, or other cause, 
notwithstanding that the Premises may be unaffected by such fire or other cause, Landlord shall 
have the right, to be exercised by notice in writing delivered to Tenant within sixty (60) days from 
and after said occurrence, to elect to cancel and terminate this Lease.  Upon such notice to Tenant, 
the term of this Lease shall expire by lapse of time upon the tenth (10th) day after such notice is 
given, and Tenant shall vacate the Premises and surrender the same to Landlord. 
 
14.3  Delay.  No penalty shall accrue for reasonable delay that may arise or occur by 
reason of adjustment of insurance on the party of the Landlord and/or Tenant and for reasonable 
delay on account of strikes, lockouts, “labor trouble,” or any other cause beyond the control of the 
parties. 
 

ARTICLE 15 
 

EMINENT DOMAIN 
 

K - 1 -23



 
 20 

15.1  In the event the Premises or any part thereof be taken by condemnation or otherwise, 
the following provisions shall be controlling: 
 
 (a) If the whole of the Premises shall be acquired or condemned by eminent domain for 
any public or quasi-public use or purpose, then and in that event the term of this Lease shall cease 
and terminate from the date of title vesting in such proceeding and Tenant shall have no claim 
against Landlord for the value of any unexpired Term of this Lease. 
 
 (b) If any part of the Premises shall be acquired or condemned by eminent domain for 
any public or quasi-public use or purpose, and such partial taking or condemnation shall render the 
Premises unsuitable for the business of Tenant, then in such event the term of this Lease shall cease 
and terminate from the date of title vesting in such proceeding, and Tenant shall have no claim 
against Landlord for the value of any unexpired term of this Lease.  In the event the partial taking or 
condemnation is not, in Landlord's sole discretion, extensive enough to render the Premises 
unsuitable for the business of Tenant, then the Landlord shall promptly restore the Premises to a 
condition comparable, in Landlord's sole discretion, to its condition at the time of such 
condemnation less the portion taken in such condemnation, and the Lease shall thereafter continue 
in full force and effect. 
 
 (c) In the event of any whole or partial condemnation or taking Tenant shall not be 
entitled to any part of any award or damages for such condemnation.  Landlord is to receive the full 
amount of any such award. Tenant hereby expressly waives any right or claim to any part thereof; 
except that Tenant shall be entitled to receive and retain only any amounts which may be 
specifically awarded to it in such condemnation proceedings because of the taking of its trade 
furniture or fixtures and its leasehold improvements which have not become a part of the realty.  It 
is understood that in the event of the termination of this Lease as described above, neither Landlord 
nor Tenant shall have any claim against the other for the value of any portion of any unexpired 
Term under this Lease and Tenant shall have no right or claim to any part of the award on account 
thereof. 
 

 
 
 

ARTICLE 16 
 

BANKRUPTCY - INSOLVENCY 
 
  If at any time after the commencement of the Lease:  (a) any proceedings in 
bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization shall be instituted against Tenant pursuant to any Federal 
or State law now or hereafter enacted, or any receiver or trustee shall be appointed for all or any 
portion of Tenant's business or property, or any execution or attachment shall issue against Tenant 
or any of Tenant's business or property or against the leasehold estate created hereby, and any of 
such proceedings, process or appointment are not dismissed within thirty (30) days from the date of 
such filing, appointment or issuance; or (b) Tenant shall be adjudged a bankrupt or insolvent, or 
Tenant shall make an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or Tenant shall file a voluntary 

K - 1 -24



 
 21 

petition in bankruptcy or petitions for (or enter into) an arrangement for reorganization or any other 
arrangement with Tenant's creditors under any Federal or State law currently existing or hereafter 
enacted, or this Lease or the estate of the Tenant herein shall pass to or devolve upon, by operation 
of law or otherwise, anyone other than Tenant (except as herein provided), the occurrence of any 
one of these events shall constitute a repudiation by Tenant of Tenant's obligations hereunder and 
shall cause this Lease ipso facto to be cancelled and terminate, without thereby releasing Tenant; 
and upon such termination Landlord shall have the immediate right to re-enter the Premises and to 
remove all persons and property therefrom and this Lease shall not be treated as an asset of the 
Tenant's estate and neither Tenant nor anyone claiming by, through or under Tenant by virtue of any 
law or any order of any court shall be entitled to possession of the Premises or to remain in the 
possession thereof.  Upon the termination of this Lease, as aforesaid, Landlord shall have the right 
to retain as partial damages, and not as a penalty, any prepaid Rent and any security deposit and 
Landlord shall also be entitled to exercise such rights and remedies to recover from Tenant as 
damages such amounts as are specified in Article 17 hereof, unless any statute or rule of law 
governing the proceedings in which such damages are to be provided shall lawfully limit the 
amount of such claims in which case Landlord shall be entitled to recover, as and for liquidated 
damages, the maximum amount which may be allowed under any such statute or rule of law.  As 
used in this Article, the term “Tenant” shall be deemed to include Tenant and its successors and 
assigns and the guarantor of the Tenant's obligations under this Lease, if any. 
 

ARTICLE 17 
 

DEFAULT BY TENANT 
 
17.1  General.  If Tenant assigns or sublets or attempts to assign or sublet the Premises, 
either voluntarily or by operation of law, except as herein provided, or if Tenant shall fail (a) to pay 
any Rent or other sum payable hereunder on or before its due date, or (b) to keep, observe or 
perform any of the other terms, covenants and conditions herein to be kept, observed and performed 
by Tenant for more than ten (10) days after written notice to Tenant specifying the nature of such 
default, or if said default shall be of a nature that the same cannot be reasonably cured or remedied 
within said ten (10) day period, if Tenant shall not in good faith have commenced  the curing or 
remedying of such default within such ten (10) day period and shall not thereafter continuously and 
diligently proceed therewith to completion; then in any one or more of such events (herein 
sometimes referred to as an “Event of Default”), Landlord shall have the immediate right to re-enter 
the Premises, either by summary proceedings, by force or otherwise and to dispossess Tenant and 
all other occupants therefrom and remove and dispose of all property therein or, at Landlord's 
election, to store such property in a public warehouse or elsewhere at the cost and for the account of 
Tenant, all without service of any notice of intention to re-enter with or without resort to legal 
process (which Tenant hereby expressly waives) and without Landlord being deemed guilty of 
trespass or becoming liable for any loss or damage which may be occasioned thereby.  Upon the 
occurrence of any such Event of Default, Landlord shall also have the right, at its option, in addition 
to and not in limitation of any other right or remedy, to terminate this Lease by giving Tenant a 
written seven (7) days' notice of cancellation and upon the expiration of said seven (7) days, this 
Lease and the term hereof shall end and expire as fully and completely as if the date of expiration of 
such seven (7) day period were the date herein definitely fixed for the end and expiration of this 

K - 1 -25



 
 22 

Lease and the term hereof and thereupon, unless Landlord shall have theretofore elected to re-enter 
the Premises.  Landlord shall have the immediate right to re-entry, in the manner aforesaid, and 
Tenant and all other occupants shall quit and surrender the Premises to Landlord, but Tenant shall 
remain liable as hereinafter provided; provided, however, that if Tenant shall default in the 
performance of any covenant of this Lease other than for the payment of Rent or other sums more 
than three (3) times, in the aggregate, in any period of twelve (12) months (provided written notice 
of each of such defaults being relied on by Landlord in invoking this provision has been given to 
Tenant) then, notwithstanding that such defaults shall have been cured within the period after notice 
as above provided in sub-clause (b) above, any further similar default shall be deemed to be 
deliberate and Landlord thereafter may serve said written seven (7) day notice of termination 
without affording to Tenant an opportunity to cure such further default. 
 
17.2  Landlord's Right to Relet Premises.  If by reason of the occurrence of any Event of 
Default, the Term of this Lease shall end before the date originally fixed herein, or Landlord shall 
re-enter the Premises, or Tenant shall be ejected, dispossessed, or removed therefrom by summary 
proceedings or in any other manner, whether or not specifically enumerated in this Lease, or if the 
Premises become vacant, deserted or abandoned, Landlord at any time thereafter may relet the 
Premises, or any part thereof, either in the name of Landlord or as agent for Tenant, for a term or 
terms which may, at Landlord's option, be less than or exceed the period of the remainder of the 
Term hereof or which otherwise would have constituted the balance of the Term of this Lease, and 
grant concessions or free Rent.  Landlord shall receive the Rent from such reletting and shall apply 
the same, first, to the payment of any indebtedness other than Rent due hereunder from Tenant to 
Landlord; second, to the payment of expenses Landlord may have incurred in connection with re-
entering, ejecting, removing, dispossessing, reletting, altering, repairing, redecorating, subdividing, 
or otherwise preparing the Premises for reletting, including brokerage and attorney's fees; and the 
residue, if any, Landlord shall apply to the fulfillment of the terms, covenants and conditions of 
Tenant hereunder and Tenant hereby waives all claims to the surplus, if any.  Tenant shall be and 
hereby agrees to be liable for and to pay Landlord any deficiency between the Rent and other 
charges reserved herein and the net rentals, as aforesaid, of reletting, if any, for each month of the 
period which otherwise would have constituted the balance of the Term of this Lease.  Tenant 
hereby agrees to pay such deficiency in monthly installments on rent days specified in this Lease, 
and any suit or proceeding brought to collect the deficiency for any month, either during the term of 
this Lease or after any termination thereof, shall not prejudice or preclude in any way the rights of 
Landlord to collect the deficiency for any subsequent month by a similar suit or proceeding. 
 
17.3  Attorney Fees.  Tenant shall pay its own attorneys’ fees with respect to any matter 
arising under this Lease. In the event there is an Event of Default Tenant shall pay all fees, costs and 
expenses that Landlord incurs as a result of such default, including without limitation, all 
reasonable fees and expenses of attorneys and accountants, and all fees, costs and expenses of any 
appeal. 
 
 

ARTICLE 18 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 

K - 1 -26



 
 23 

 
18.1  Landlord not Liable for Delays Beyond its Control.  Anything in this Lease to the 
contrary notwithstanding, Landlord shall not be deemed to be in default in the performance of any 
of its obligations hereunder unless and until Landlord shall have failed to perform its obligations 
within thirty (30) days of the expiration of a period of time reasonably required to correct any 
default after written notice has been given by Tenant to Landlord specifying the nature of 
Landlord's default.  Landlord shall not be deemed to be in default hereunder so long as it 
commences or attempts to commence correction of such default within said reasonable time period, 
and diligently pursues the curing thereof after commencing the same. 
 
18.2  Subordination of Lease.  At the option of Landlord this Lease may be subject and 
subordinate to all ground or underlying leases and to all deeds of trusts or mortgages which may 
now or hereafter affect the real property of which the Premises form a part, and to all renewals, 
modifications, consolidations, replacements and extensions thereof.  In confirmation of such 
subordination, Tenant shall execute promptly any certificate that Landlord may request, and such 
other papers and documents as may be necessary to effect such subordination. 
 
18.3  Attornment.  Tenant shall, in the event any proceedings are brought for the 
foreclosure of, or in the event of exercise of the power of sale under any mortgage made by 
Landlord covering the Premises, attorn to the purchaser upon any such foreclosure or sale and 
recognize such purchaser as the Landlord under this lease. 
 
18.4  Offset Statement From Tenant.  Within ten (10) days after request therefor by 
Landlord, or in the event that upon any sale, assignment or hypothecation of the Premises and/or the 
land thereunder by Landlord a statement should be required from Tenant, Tenant agrees to deliver 
to any proposed mortgagee or purchaser, or to Landlord a certificate in recordable form, certifying, 
if such be the case, that this Lease is in full force and effect and that there are no defenses or offsets 
thereto, or stating specifically those that are then claimed by the Tenant. 
 
18.5  Covenant of Quiet Enjoyment.  Tenant, subject to the terms and provisions of this 
Lease, on payment of the Rent and upon observing, keeping and performing all of the terms and 
provisions of this Lease on its part to be observed, kept and performed, shall lawfully, peaceably 
and quietly have, hold and enjoy the Premises during the term hereof without hindrance or ejection 
by any persons lawfully claiming under Landlord; but it is understood and agreed that this covenant 
and any and all other covenants of Landlord contained in this Lease shall be binding upon Landlord 
and its successors and assigns only with respect to breaches occurring during its and their respective 
ownership of Landlord's interest hereunder.  It is further understood and agreed that with respect to 
any services to be furnished by Landlord to Tenant or any other obligation of Landlord under this 
Lease, Landlord shall in no event be liable for failure to furnish the same when prevented or 
delayed in doing so as a result of strikes, lockouts, labor disputes, breakdown, accident, order or 
regulation of or by any governmental authority, or failure of supply, or, after Landlord has exercised 
due diligence, inability to obtain supplies, parts or employees necessary to furnish such services or 
do such work, or because of war or other similar emergency, or for other causes beyond Landlord's 
reasonable control, or for any reasonable period of time for any cause due to any act or neglect of 
Tenant or its servants, agents, employees, licenses or any person claiming by, through or under 

K - 1 -27



 
 24 

Tenant, sequential damages, nor shall the same affect the obligation of Tenant to pay rent hereunder 
and perform all of the other covenants and agreements hereunder on the part of Tenant required to 
be performed. 
 
18.6  No Recording.  Tenant shall not record this Lease or any memorandum or record 
thereof without the prior written consent of Landlord. 
 
18.7  Extension of Time.  The period of time during which either Landlord or Tenant is 
prevented from or delayed in the performance of the making of any improvements or repairs or 
fulfilling any obligation required under this Lease, other than obligations for the payment of money, 
which is due to or the result of unavoidable delays caused by fire, catastrophe, strikes or labor 
troubles, civil commotion, war, terrorism, Acts of God or the public enemy, governmental 
prohibitions or regulations, or inability to obtain materials by reason thereof, or other causes beyond 
such party's reasonable control, shall be added to such party's time for performance thereof, and 
such party shall not be subjected to any liability by reason thereof, except as noted in preceding 
paragraphs of this Lease. 
 
18.8  Waiver.  The failure of either party hereto to seek redress for violation of, or to insist 
upon the strict performance of, any covenant or condition of this Lease, or of any rule or regulation, 
shall not prevent a subsequent act, which would have originally constituted a violation, from having 
all the force and effect of an original violation.  The receipt and use by the Landlord of Rent with 
knowledge of breach of any covenant of this Lease shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such 
breach.  No provision of this Lease shall be deemed waived by a party hereto unless such waiver is 
in writing signed by such party.  No payment by Tenant or receipt by Landlord of a lesser sum that 
the Rent herein stipulated shall, unless otherwise agreed upon specifically in writing, be deemed to 
be anything other than a partial payment on account of the stipulated Rent.  Tenant's acceptance of 
possession of the Premises shall not constitute a waiver of any incomplete, defective or deficient 
work, and Landlord shall with all reasonable diligence cure and correct such matters and 
deficiencies. 
 
18.9  Entire Agreement.  This Lease contains the entire agreement between the parties and 
any agreement made hereafter shall be ineffective to change, modify or discharge it in whole or in 
part, unless such agreement is in writing and signed by the party against whom enforcement of the 
change, modification or discharge is sought. 
 
18.10  Assignment; Binding Effect.  Landlord may assign its interests under the Lease, 
upon which event Landlord shall be entirely relieved and freed of all obligations under this Lease 
occurring after the date of such assignment.  Landlord and Tenant agree that all of the covenants, 
conditions and agreements contained in this Lease shall bind and inure to the benefit of the 
Landlord and Tenant and their respective heirs, distributees, executors, administrators, successors, 
and, except as otherwise provided in this Lease, their assigns. 
 
18.11  Notices.  Any notice, demand, request, consent, approval or other communication 
with either party hereto is required or desires to give or make or communicate to the other 
hereunder shall be in writing and shall be given or made or communicated either by personal 

K - 1 -28



 
 25 

delivery or by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, or by any 
delivery service that provides a receipt to indicate delivery and addressed in the case of Landlord to: 
 
  Quadrangle Management Company 
  c/o Washington University in St. Louis 
  Campus Box 1016 
  700 Rosedale Avenue 
  St. Louis, Missouri  63112 
 
With a copy to: 
 
  Washington University 
  Campus Box 1058 
  One Brookings Drive 
  St. Louis, Missouri  63130-4899 
   
and addressed in the case of Tenant to: 
 

Nobu Japanese Restaurant 
6253 Delmar Avenue 
St. Louis, Missouri 63130  

 
subject to the right of either party to designate different addresses by giving notice as above 
provided.  Any notice, demand, request, consent, approval, or other communication so sent shall be 
deemed to have been given three (3) days after the date the same was deposited in the United States 
mail as registered or certified mail, with postage fully prepaid, or if by personal delivery or delivery 
by delivery service, on the date delivered.   
 
18.12  Captions and Section Numbers.  The captions, section numbers and article number 
appearing in this Lease are inserted only as a matter of convenience and in no way define, limit, 
construe or describe the scope or intent of such sections or articles or this Lease, nor in any way 
modify or affect this Lease. 
 
18.13  “Landlord” and “Tenant”.  Wherever the words “Landlord” and “Tenant” are used 
herein, the same shall include singular and plural, individual or corporation, subject always to the 
restrictions herein contained as to sub-letting or assignment of this Lease. 
 
18.14  Laws of Missouri.  This Lease shall be construed under the laws of Missouri. 
 
18.15  No Offset.  Anything in this Lease to the contrary notwithstanding, Tenant shall not 
have the right to offset any claims of Tenant against Landlord against Rent or other amounts 
payable hereunder, nor shall Landlord have the right to offset any claims it may have against Tenant 
against any sums of money, if any, payable by Landlord to Tenant hereunder. 
 
18.16  Surrender; Holding Over.  On the date of expiration of the Term, or upon the earlier 

K - 1 -29



 
 26 

termination of this Lease, Tenant shall vacate and peaceably surrender the Premises to Landlord in 
good order and condition, ordinary wear and tear excepted.  If Tenant should remain in possession 
of the Premises or any part thereof after the expiration of the Term of this Lease, such holding over 
by Tenant shall constitute a tenancy from month to month upon the same conditions, except as to 
term, as those herein provided, excepting that Tenant shall pay for each day that Tenant holds over 
rent at double the rate of the fixed minimum rent hereinbefore provided to be paid. 
 
18.17  Transfer of Title.  In the event of any transfers of the title of Landlord in and to the 
Commercial Space, Landlord herein named (and in the case of any subsequent transfers or 
conveyances, the then Grantor) shall upon such transfer stand relieved and discharged from and 
after the date of such transfer of all liability as respects the performance of any covenants or 
obligations on the part of Landlord contained in this Lease thereafter to be performed. 
 
18.18  Jury Trial Waiver.  LANDLORD AND TENANT HEREBY KNOWINGLY 
AND INTENTIONALLY WAIVE THE RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION 
OR PROCEEDING THAT LANDLORD OR TENANT MAY HEREINAFTER 
INSTITUTE AGAINST THE OTHER WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER ARISING 
OUT OF OR RELATED TO THIS LEASE OR THE LEASED PREMISES. 
 

 
 [balance of this page intentionally left blank] 

K - 1 -30



 
 27 

  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Lease to be executed 
the day and year first above stated. 
 
      QUADRANGLE MANAGEMENT COMPANY 
 
 
 
      By:_______________________________ 
      Name: Rachel L. Siegert 
      Title: Vice President 
 
 
      NOBU, INC.  
 
 
 
      By:_______________________________ 
      Name: Noboru Kidera 
      Title: Owner-Operator 
 
      By:_______________________________ 
      Name: Taeko Kidera 
      Title: Owner-Operator 
       
      By:_______________________________ 
      Name: George S. Kidera 
      Title: Owner-Operator 
 

K - 1 -31

Shinichi George Kidera
06/24/2021

Shinichi George Kidera
06/24/2021

Shinichi George Kidera
06/24/2021



 
 28 

 EXHIBIT A 
 
 Floorplan of Premises 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Premises 

Premises 
Approx. 964 sf 

K - 1 -32



 
 29 

EXHIBIT B 
 

Sidewalk Space 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Approx. 
Location of 
Sidewalk 

Space 

K - 1 -33



 
 30 

EXHIBIT C 
 

Landlord’s Work 
 
 
1. Install a new 40-gallon hot water heater. 
 
2. Confirm, to the best of Landlord’s knowledge, that the existing HVAC system serving the 
Premises is in good working order. 
 
3. Confirm, to the best of Landlord’s knowledge, that the electrical panel and plumbing within 
the Premises are in good working order. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

K - 1 -34



Paid in Full 

$282,892.71 

10-26-23 

K - 1 -35



K - 1 -36



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CA20231127-02

Drone replacement

Deputy Chief Fred Kramer Fire Department

Consent Yes

City manager recommends replacing current drones in order to meet FAA requirements.

Budgeted Item for $40,000.00 remaining $1,335.00 to come from excess in radio budget.

$41,335.00 15-35-90-8200
Acct 15 Acct 15

Replace current outdated Fire Department Drones.

Under current federal regulations, drones need to be equipped with a remote ID module 
transponder.  None of our current drones have this module and are unable to fly. 

See bids for replacement

Public safety

City Manager, Gregrory Rose 11/272023

K - 2 - 1



K - 2 - 2



K - 2 - 3



K - 2 - 4



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CA20231127-03

Portable Radio Replacement

Wm. Hinson Fire Chief Fire
consent yes

The City Manager recommends approval of the funds to replace 5 inoperable portable radios 
needed for emergency communication. 

This is a budgeted item in Capital outlay.

$45,122.35 15-35-90-8200

 Fund 15 Fund 15

The current radios are 10 years old and failing, with no replacement parts available. Radios 
are to replace radios that have already failed, leaving the department short of the amount 
needed.

The radios we currently use are past the end of the normal life cycle and parts are no longer 
made to rebuild and repair. 
It is required that all personnel on the scene of an emergency incident have a radio to be 
able to communicate any issues that may arise. 
Our current radio inventory has put us at risk of being short enough for the crews. 

Radio replacement bid

Public and Employee safety.

City Manager, Gregrory Rose 11/27/23

K - 3 - 1



K - 3 - 2



K - 3 - 3



K - 3 - 4



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CA20231127-04

Municipal Park Grant Commission 
Grant Agreement

Darin Girdler, Director of Public Works Parks/Ward 3
Consent Yes

City Manager recommends City Council approval to sign Municipal Park Grant Commission 
Grant Agreement for Round 24 in the amount of $575,000.00.

The total budget for this project is $875,000.00 for the reconstruction of the eastern baseball 
field in Millar Park.  The City's budgeted match will be $300,000.00.

$875,000.00

The City applied for this grant earlier this year with the intention of reconstructing the east baseball 
field at Millar Park for use by the high school team.  The high school team will use the field as is 
(with a few modifications) next season and reconstruction will begin as soon as the season is over.

With the historic flood of July 2022 devastating Jack Buck Field at Heman Park, it was 
determined that it could not be reconstructed in place as it was and would need to be 
reconfigured in a way that a high school team could not use it.  That being the case, it was 
decided that the eastern field at Millar was a good candidate for the improvements 
necessary for it to be a first class high school facility.

PPRP24-09

Award Letter 
Grant Agreement

Improved Infrastructure 
Quality of Life

City Manager, Gregrory Rose November 27, 2023

K - 4 -  1



K - 4 -  2



K - 4 -  3



K - 4 -  4



K - 4 -  5



K - 4 -  6



K - 4 -  7



K - 4 -  8



K - 4 -  9



K - 4 -  10



K - 4 -  11



K - 4 -  12



K - 4 -  13



K - 4 -  14



K - 4 -  15



K - 4 -  16



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CA20231127-05

Police Department purchase of camera surveillance equipment to be used in Heman Park 
and Millar Park

Chief Larry Hampton Police Department
Consent No

City Managers recommends approval.

Upgrading camera surveillance to capture illegal activity in Heman Park and Millar Park. The 
fiscal impact will be light and absorbed in UCPD budgetary annual licensing accounts. 

$33,963.25 #14-50-90-8100

CIP Surveillance Camera Equip #15-30-90-8200 Camera Equip CIP

The Police Department is requesting the purchase of camera surveillance equipment for 
increased security measures in Heman Park and Millar Park.  

Will Electronics is quoted for providing the department all build-up, support, and installation 
to these projects. Heman Park is quoted as $21,211.06 and Millar Park is quoted as 
$12,752.19. This totals $33,963.25 to bring increased security measures to prominent parks 
here in University City, MO. 

Will Electronics quotes and original CIP approved form attached 

Public Safety 
Prudent Fiscal Management

City Manager, Gregrory Rose 11/27/2023
K - 5 - 1



K - 5 - 2



K - 5 - 3



K - 5 - 4


	E2 - 2023-11-13 Draft Minutes.pdf
	1. BILL 9525 – AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 130.580 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, RELATING TO NON-UNIFORMED EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM BENEFIT ADJUSTMENTS, BY INCREASING MONTHLY BENEFITS TO RETIREES AND THEIR BENEF...
	Councilmember Klein moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember McMahon.
	Roll Call Vote Was:
	Ayes:  Councilmember McMahon, Councilmember Hales, Councilmember Fuller, Councilmember Smotherson, Councilmember Klein, and Mayor Crow.
	Nays:  None.
	2. BILL 9526 - AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 130.590 AND 130.600 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, RELATING TO NON-UNIFORMED EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM BENEFITS ON TERMINATION OTHER THAN RETIREMENT OR DEATH, AND VESTIN...
	Councilmember Fuller moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember Hales.
	Roll Call Vote Was:
	Ayes:  Councilmember Hales, Councilmember Fuller, Councilmember Smotherson, Councilmember Klein, Councilmember McMahon, and Mayor Crow.
	Nays:  None.
	3. BILL 9531–AN ORDINANCE FIXING THE COMPENSATION TO BE PAID TO CITY OFFICIALS AND EMPLOYEES AS ENUMERATED HEREIN FROM AND AFTER NOVEMBER 13, 2023, AND REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 7337.  Bill Number 9531 was read for the second and third time.
	Councilmember Hales moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember McMahon.
	Roll Call Vote Was:
	Ayes:  Councilmember Fuller, Councilmember Smotherson, Councilmember Klein, Councilmember McMahon, Councilmember Hales, and Mayor Crow.
	Nays:  None.
	Resolutions
	None
	None
	Blank Page

	K2 - ALL Drone agenda item.pdf
	COPY

	K3 - ALL Radio agenda item.pdf
	COPY
	Blank Page

	K4 - All - Park Grant 2024.pdf
	COPY

	K5 - All - UCPD Park Cameras - Cover Form 11.27.2023 updated.pdf
	COPY

	K1 - All - Nobus.pdf
	COPY
	Blank Page

	2023-11-27 Council Agenda.pdf
	none
	Resolutions
	none
	none




